
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

April 17, 2018 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 







 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



14-B District Court

Revenue Report for March 2018

General Account

Account Number

Due to Washtenaw County

(101-000-000-214.222) $4,512.41

Due to State Treasurer

Civil Filing Fee Fund  (MCL 600.171): $15,645.00

State Court Fund  (MCL 600.8371): $1,590.00

Justice System Fund  (MCL 600.181): $25,339.47

Juror Compensation Reimbursement Fund:

Civil Jury Demand Fee  (MCL 600.8371): $20.00

Drivers License Clearance Fees  (MCL 257.321a): $2,685.00

Crime Victims Rights Fund  (MCL 780.905): $7,944.30

Judgment Fee  (Dept. of Natural Resources): $0.00

E-File Fee  (228.56): $4,675.00

Due to Secretary of State

(101-000-000-206.136) $2,685.00

Total: $60,583.77

Due to Ypsilanti Township

Court Costs (101-000-000-602.136): $62,001.14

Civil Fees (101-000-000-603.136): $14,615.00

Probation Fees (101-000-000-604.000): $9,986.19

Ordinance Fines (101-000-000-605.001): $54,320.00

Bond Forfeitures (101-000-000-605.003): $3,100.00

Interest Earned (101-000-000-605.004): $0.00

State Aid-Caseflow Assistance (101-000-602.544): $0.00

Expense Write-Off: $0.00

Bank Charges (Expense - 101.136.000.957.000): ($698.44)

Total: $143,323.89

Total to General Account - (101.000.000.004.136): $208,420.07

Escrow Account

(101-000-000-205.136)

Court Ordered Escrow: $6,969.00

Bonds: $17,216.00

Restitution: $4,157.50

Total to Escrow Account - (101.000.000.205.136): $28,342.50



Year to Date
Prior Year Comparison

Month Revenue Revenue
2017 2018

January 120,611.62$          109,316.31$          
February 155,669.56$          137,035.89$          
March 182,041.34$          143,323.89$          
April 148,443.25$          
May 162,945.87$          
June 139,612.07$          
July 140,495.57$          
August 161,593.12$          
September 145,006.23$          
October 149,269.12$          
November 126,239.85$          
December 111,592.86$          

Grant: 117,000.00$          
Standardization
Payment: 45,724.00$            45,724.00$            
Year-to Date
Totals: 1,906,244.46$       435,400.09$          
Expenditure
Budget: 1,486,200.32$       1,680,537.00$       
Difference: 420,044.14$          (1,245,136.91)$     



 

 

14-B District Court 

 

  Monthly Disbursements 

 

 March 2018 

 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a State Statute is disbursed to the Washtenaw 

County Treasurer, for library purposes. 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a Township Ordinance and all Court Costs are 

disbursed to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer.  Local revenue also includes Probation oversight 

fees and Bond Forfeitures. 

 

 Revenue received as State Filing Fee, State Court Fund, Justice System Fund, Juror 

Compensation, Crime Victims Rights Fund and Dept. of Natural Resources Judgment Fee is 

forwarded to the State Treasurer. 

  

 Money received as Garnishment Proceeds, Criminal Bonds, Restitution, and Court 

Ordered Escrow are deposited in the Escrow Account of the Court. 

 

 All other revenues are transferred to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer. 

 

 

                         March 2018 Disbursements: 

 

  Washtenaw County:                  $   4,512.41 

       

  State of Michigan:                     $   60,583.77 

 

  Ypsilanti Township Treasurer:     $143,323.89 

 

 

      TOTAL:   $208,420.07 



 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

MARCH 2018 

 
Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 1 Fire Chief     3 Shift Captains            18 Fire Fighters      
 1 Fire Marshal                          3 Shift Lieutenants            1 Clerk III/Staff Support 
       
All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the State of 
Michigan Public Health.  During the month, the fire department responded to 357 requests for assistance.  Of 
those requests, 240 were medical emergency service calls, with the remaining 117 incidents classified as non-
medical and/or fire related. 

Department activities for the month of March, 2018: 

1)  The Public Education Department participated in the following events: 
a) Hosted U of M Car Seat Recertification Training 
b) Hosted County Road Commission meeting – Harris Road Construction 
c) Toured Clark East Towers 
d) Truck Demonstration – Whittaker Road Kroger / MDA Shamrocks 
e) Smoke Alarms:  812 Desoto (2) 
f) Car Seat fittings for U of M Buckle Up program 

 
 

2)  Fire fighters attended 12 neighborhood watch meetings 
 

3)  Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 
a) Washtenaw County Tech Rescue Team 
b) Washtenaw County HazMat 
c) RIT Pack 
d) Hydro Dam EAP 
e) Active Shooter 

  

The Fire Marshal had these activities / events for the month of March, 2018: 

 1)  Fire Pump Inspections:  1 
 2)  Plan Reviews:  5 
 3)  Building Inspections:  9 
 4)  Fire Alarm Tests:  2 
 5)  Sprinkler Inspections:  2 
 6)  Image Trend demonstration 
 7)  Officers Meeting 
 8)  Hydro Dam EAP 
 9)  Active Shooter training 
          10)  Meeting with Yankee Air Museum representatives 
          11)  Hood Acceptance class 
           



Monthly Report – March, 2018 
Page 2 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of March, 2018: 

1)  WAMAA 
 2)  Active Shooter training 
 3)  Hydro Dam EAP           
 4)  Consultation with Vedder Electric for HQ outdoor lights 
 5)  ACM (American Center for Mobility) projects meeting 
 6)  Consultation with OEX for HQ training room  
 7)  Complaint Investigation 
 8)  Image Trend demonstration 
 9)  Crystal Flash meeting  
 10) Truck Committee meeting 
 11) Meeting with Ypsilanti City Fire Department regarding loaner truck  
 12) Quality Control meeting with HVA  
 13) Ladder Truck & Auto Mutual Aid meeting with Superior Township Chief Chevrette 
 14) Hood Acceptance class 
 15) Officers Meeting 

16) Meeting with Yankee Air Museum representatives 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 
This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $18,600.00.  All occurred at the following 
locations: 

 DATE OF LOSS ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 03/04/2018  3375 E Michigan   $              0.00 (vehicle)  
2) 03/12/2018  61 Harvey Place  $       5,500.00 (building) 
3) 03/14/2018  N Ford Blvd @ E Michigan $              0.00 (natural vegetation) 
4) 03/16/2018  2069 Tyler   $              0.00 (brush) 
5) 03/16/2018  84 Russell Court   $              0.00 (brush) 
6) 03/17/2018  119 S Harris   $              0.00 (brush) 
7) 03/17/2018  545 Maulbetsch  $     10,100.00 (building) 
8) 03/21/2018  2375 Ellsworth  $               0.00 (brush) 
9) 03/22/2018  Huron @ James Hart Pkwy   $               0.00 (brush) 
10) 03/23/2018  493 Spanish Oak  $               0.00 (Mutual Aid – Augusta Township) 
11) 03/23/2018  6800 Geddes   $               0.00 (Mutual Aid – Superior Township) 
12) 03/23/2018  1409 Whittier   $               0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
13) 03/25/2018  2189 Glory Lane  $               0.00 (brush) 
14) 03/27/2018  1451 Ecorse   $        3,000.00 (building) 
15) 03/28/2018  2911 Bynan Drive  $               0.00 (cooking) 

Respectfully submitted, 

Rhonda Bates, Clerical Support Staff 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

Attachment:  Fire House Incident Type Report (Summary) 03/01/2018 – 03/31/2018 



Alarm Date Between {03/01/18} And {03/31/18} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
100 Fire, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
111 Building fire 5 1.40% $18,600 100.00%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
131 Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
140 Natural vegetation fire, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 6 1.68% $0   0.00%

15 4.20% $18,600 100.00%

2 Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)
200 Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%

1 0.28% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 17 4.76% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 24 6.72% $0   0.00%
320 Emergency medical service, other 4 1.12% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury171 47.90% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 9 2.52% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 15 4.20% $0   0.00%

240 67.23% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
400 Hazardous condition, Other 2 0.56% $0   0.00%
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
422 Chemical spill or leak 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 2 0.56% $0   0.00%
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, Other 3 0.84% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 11 3.08% $0   0.00%
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1 0.28% $0   0.00%

21 5.88% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
510 Person in distress, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
522 Water or steam leak 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
531 Smoke or odor removal 3 0.84% $0   0.00%
550 Public service assistance, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
5501 Neighborhood Watch 3 0.84% $0   0.00%
5502 Community Outreach 1 0.28% $0   0.00%

04/03/18 11:01 1Page



Alarm Date Between {03/01/18} And {03/31/18} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

5 Service Call
554 Assist invalid 4 1.12% $0   0.00%
561 Unauthorized burning 2 0.56% $0   0.00%

16 4.48% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 4 1.12% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 20 5.60% $0   0.00%
6111 Canceled on Arrival 23 6.44% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 5 1.40% $0   0.00%

52 14.57% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
730 System malfunction, Other 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 2 0.56% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 4 1.12% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional1 0.28% $0   0.00%
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.28% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.28% $0   0.00%

12 3.36% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 357 Total Est Loss: $18,600

04/03/18 11:01 2Page



Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
         STAN ELDRIDGE 
          HEATHER ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
     JIMMIE WILSON, JR.

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
Date:  March 7, 2018 
To:  Clerk’s Office 
CC:   
From: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operation Manager 
      
Subject: Monthly Report (activities in February 2018) 

 

Activities: 

Ford Lake Dam 
 
General Operation Summary: 
The Hydro Station continues to operate safely and continues to get routine safety inspections and 
preventive maintenance. Operators had 4 after hour call-ins for the month. 

 
Average precipitation for the month of February is around 1.52”, this year it was about 2.63” and 
production for the month was a slightly above average. 

 
Regulatory: 
  

For 2018- 
- update DSSMP  
- Owners Dam Safety Program Review (started) 
- EAP Training (scheduled for March) 
- Part 12- recommendation plan (almost finished) 
- WQ Report (preparing for season) 
- Nuisance Plant Plan Report  
- Wildlife Plan Report  
- Historical Activity Report  
- Gate Certification  
- Security Review  
- Annual Safety inspection  
- EAP annual update and test  
- Spillway Assessment (at FERC in review) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Hydro Station  

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 544.3690 
Fax:  (734) 544.3626 

 
www.ytown.org 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


Projects: 
 

Concrete Maintenance (On Hold until 2019) 
 Repair small areas concrete damaged from exposure to ice and road salt. Repair exterior stairs and hand 

railing. 
 

Generator #2 Turbine Bearing 
In January 2018, the Board approved staff to gather quotes to replace the turbine bearing. Staff is 
meeting with 4 companies to get pricing. If approved, work is planned to start in July 2018. 

 
River Coordination  
Van Buren Twp. and French Landing Dam are considering lowering Belleville Lake in the fall of 2019. It 
will be important to look at the possible effects to the Hydro Station and the operations if Belleville Lake 
is to be lowered. 
 
 
Operation Summary 
2018      February             YTD     5 yr Ave. 
Precipitation1                      2.63”            3.61”          31.47”  
Days Online                   28               58.8       353.3 
Gross generation MWH (estimated)               992.014                   1,930.402            9,201.715 
Generation lost MWH (estimated)*                    0                           9.980  403.286         
After Hour Call In                    
 Water levels      4   6  35 
 Mechanical/Electrical     0   0    4 
 Other       0   0    4 
 Totals       4   6  43 
 
 
 
Recent History    2013          2014    2015           2016  2017  
Precipitation total   40.87”          34.31”     25.27”         29.61”  27.30” 
Days Online    345          355      345              359.5  362 
Generation MWH (estimated)  8,991.285      9,745.999    7,723.040    8,803.436  10,744.816 
Generation lost MWH (estimated)* 454.824*       643.164*     419.050*     229.798*  269.595* 
 
After Hour Call In                   
 Water levels   44          43      32  31   26 
 Mechanical/Electrical  1           7      1  4   5 
 Other    0           15     1  2   3 
  
 Totals    45          67          34  37   34 
 
1 Totals from Weather Underground – Ypsilanti Willow Run 
*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality discharges. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Spilling Summary: 
 
Releasing water from the sluice gates is primary to maintain lake level when flow exceeds the 
powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the gates to help keep the lake mixing to maintain oxygen 
levels (effectiveness depends on a number of factors) at the bottom of the lake. 
 
The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on September 30th; operators monitor the 
water quality conditions and take readings as outline in the WQ Plan. The hydro discharges from the 
bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or help with water quality in Ford Lake. The Federal License 
requires we pass water with a minimum of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time.  Therefore, spilling 
from the bottom gates in the summer for improving the lake is not always possible. 

 
Sluice Gate Usage Summary: 
          Current Year Current Year      Current Year   Prior Year 
2018 Days Spilled  Lost KWh* Lost $* Lost $* 
January 1.8 0 0 0 
February 8.8 0 0 0 
March    0 
April    0 
May    0 
June    8,129 
July    862 
August    0 
September    0 
October    0 
November    0 
December    0 

Totals 10.6   $ 8,991 
 
*estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose improving WQ. 

Sargent Charles Dam  
 
This dam continues to get routine safety inspections and appropriate maintenance. 
 
The Sargent Charles Dam is due for the 5 year inspection in 2018. It has been requested that the State 
perform inspection and complete the report on the Twp. behalf. This is at no cost to the Twp. 
 
 
 

 



 

 
  
  2201 Hogback Road  Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732  OFFICE  (734) 971-8400  FAX  (734) 973-4624  EMAIL  sheriff@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 
 SHERIFF UNDERSHERIFF 

 
 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Mike Marocco, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Mike Radzik, Ypsilanti Township Police Administrator & Ypsilanti Township Board 
Marlene Radzik, WCSO Police Services Commander 
Date: April 9, 2018 
Re: March 2018 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
In March of 2018, there were 3722 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township, which is a 8.09% 
decrease in calls for service as compared to March of 2017.   
 
OPERATIONS 
During March of 2018, Patrol Operations has been efficient in handling calls for service, traffic 
enforcement and community engagement duties in pursuit of our total policy philosophy.  We 
continue to focus on root cause issues and build on the success we have experienced within the 
community. 
As weather has improved we have seen an increase in Burglary and Larceny From Auto 
complaints.  However, the rates in those crime categories are trending toward the lowered 
rates we have had over the past several years.    
 
YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation and social services to ensure 
that there is accountability beyond Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are 
consistently involved in crimes.  The year to date reductions in burglaries, stolen autos and 
juvenile mischief complaints is directly related to the Sheriff’s Office engagement of our 
juvenile population and their family structures.   
We are currently assembling the Juvenile Team and establishing goals for the summer months. 
 
COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM 
During the month of February, the Sheriff’s Office executed narcotics related search warrants 
within Ypsilanti Township which resulted in seizures of narcotics, weapons and currency.    
Our collaboration with the Michigan Department of Correction in reference to parole compliance 
continues to pay dividends.  Fast reaction to tips regarding parolee misconduct as well as regular 
home visits are expected by the parolees that are living in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding 
areas.  
 
CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC 
Deputies have aggressively patrolled the US-12 Bypass and surrounding areas to mitigate issues 
caused by the construction as well as to ensure the safety of the workers.  In addition, we are 
monitoring the area around the North Harris construction.  



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Month: March

Year: 2018

Print Option: Print Both Monthly and YTD

Include Unfounded: No

Report Offenses: Include All (1,2,3,4)

Attempted/Completed/NA: Includes Attempted, Completed

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

4/10/2018 7:49:17 AM                  Page 1 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of March

Classification Mar/2017 Mar/2018 %Change

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 1 0 -100%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 0 0%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 1 2 100%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 1 0 -100%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 1 0 -100%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 0 1 0%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 2 1 -50%

12000  ROBBERY 3 1 -66.6%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 35 49 40%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 17 17 0%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 5 4 -20%

20000  ARSON 0 0 0%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 7 14 100%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 3 3 0%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 10 12 20%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 10 8 -20%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 3 2 -33.3%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 4 8 100%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 6 8 33.33%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 0 1 0%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 1 0 -100%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 0 1 0%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 9 7 -22.2%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 10 7 -30%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 0 1 0%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 13 12 -7.69%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 1 0 -100%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 0 1 0%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 22 19 -13.6%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 1 1 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 9 8 -11.1%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 0 0 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 15 16 6.666%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 7 7 0%

37000  OBSCENITY 1 0 -100%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 4 0 -100%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 1 0 -100%

Group A Totals 205 212 3.414%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 3 1 -66.6%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 0 1 0%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 0 1 0%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 2 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of March

Classification Mar/2017 Mar/2018 %Change

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 4 2 -50%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 2 5 150%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 9 8 -11.1%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 1 0 -100%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 6 7 16.66%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 2 1 -50%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 0 -100%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 4 6 50%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 27 25 -7.40%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 5 1 -80%

57001  TRESPASS 0 6 0%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 0 0%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 0 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 0 0 0%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 7 8 14.28%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 1 2 100%

77000  CONSPIRACY (ALL CRIMES) 1 0 -100%

Group B Totals 73 74 1.369%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 25 21 -16%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 41 23 -43.9%

3000  WARRANTS 55 50 -9.09%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 126 102 -19.0%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 115 124 7.826%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 641 670 4.524%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 1 1 0%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 1284 814 -36.6%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 980 1174 19.79%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 59 56 -5.08%

3900  ALARMS 237 144 -39.2%

Group C Totals 3564 3179 -10.8%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 28 0%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 0 0%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 1 8 700%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 0 0 0%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 3 8 166.6%

Group D Totals 4 44 1000%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0%

Group E Totals 0 0 0%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 32 45 40.62%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 131 128 -2.29%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 9 8 -11.1%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 3 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of March

Classification Mar/2017 Mar/2018 %Change

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 24 25 4.166%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 0 0 0%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 8 7 -12.5%

Group F Totals 204 213 4.411%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 4050 3722 -8.09%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 4 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2017 2018 %Change

Group F Totals 0 0 0%

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 1 0 -100%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 1 1 0%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 11 9 -18.1%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 3 2 -33.3%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 2 0 -100%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 1 0 -100%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 5 8 60%

12000  ROBBERY 15 7 -53.3%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 139 125 -10.0%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 44 46 4.545%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 15 11 -26.6%

20000  ARSON 1 1 0%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 34 33 -2.94%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 8 9 12.5%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 1 0 -100%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 40 29 -27.5%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 33 22 -33.3%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 10 4 -60%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 19 19 0%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 35 24 -31.4%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 3 2 -33.3%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 1 0 -100%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 4 7 75%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 21 23 9.523%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 24 25 4.166%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 2 2 0%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 30 41 36.66%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 1 4 300%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 5 5 0%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 69 44 -36.2%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 2 4 100%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 30 46 53.33%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 1 1 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 52 42 -19.2%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 24 15 -37.5%

37000  OBSCENITY 1 0 -100%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 9 9 0%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 2 2 0%

Group A Totals 701 623 -11.1%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 5 4 -20%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 5 3 -40%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 5 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2017 2018 %Change

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 0 1 0%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 13 5 -61.5%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 1 1 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 6 9 50%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 29 30 3.448%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 3 0 -100%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 39 31 -20.5%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 12 4 -66.6%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 0 -100%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 11 16 45.45%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 58 56 -3.44%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 9 6 -33.3%

57001  TRESPASS 0 13 0%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 1 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 1 0 -100%

63000  VAGRANCY 1 0 -100%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 19 20 5.263%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 3 2 -33.3%

77000  CONSPIRACY (ALL CRIMES) 1 0 -100%

Group B Totals 218 201 -7.79%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 80 50 -37.5%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 90 63 -30%

3000  WARRANTS 155 147 -5.16%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 362 403 11.32%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 334 414 23.95%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 1849 1989 7.571%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 4 1 -75%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 3348 2475 -26.0%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 2615 2603 -0.45%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 165 140 -15.1%

3900  ALARMS 554 445 -19.6%

Group C Totals 9556 8730 -8.64%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 1 29 2800%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 1 0%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 3 20 566.6%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 3 4 33.33%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 9 15 66.66%

Group D Totals 16 69 331.2%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 1 0 -100%

Group E Totals 1 0 -100%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 96 110 14.58%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 312 314 0.641%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 6 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through March

Classification 2017 2018 %Change

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 24 17 -29.1%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 76 64 -15.7%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 3 0 -100%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 25 31 24%

Group F Totals 536 536 0%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 11028 10159 -7.87%

4/10/2018 7:49:18 AM                  Page 7 of 7



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

TUESDAY, APRIL 17, 2018 
      

 
5:00pm 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 

 
 

 
1. SEMCOG PRESENTATION.......................................………………..………….AMY MALMER 

 
2. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
3. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 



 

SEMCOG Presentation 

 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

       TUESDAY, APRIL 17, 2018 
    7:00 P.M. 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING  

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 17, 2018 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

1,198,607.84 
2. CLARITY HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MARCH 2018 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $62,059.56  
3. CLARITY HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE MARCH 2018 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,077.00  
 
C. MARCH 2018 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
5. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST OF BRIAN MCCLEERY, ASSISTANT ASSESSOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO 

ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP OWNED PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 138 S. HARRIS RD PARCEL ID K#11-10-180-007 
(TABLED AT THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 

 
2. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF FOR APPROVAL OF AUTOMATIC 

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE VAN BUREN TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

3. 1ST READING OF RESOLUTION 2018-07, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2018-477, AN 
ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 22 OF THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE REQUIRING REGISTRATION 
OF COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL BUSINESSES  

 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  April 17, 2018 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

4. RESOLUTION 2018-10, PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEES FOR TOWNSHIP, 
ATTORNEY, PLANNER, ENGINEER AND FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
5. 1st READING OF RESOLUTION 2018-11, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2018-478, AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 74, TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE, SO 
AS TO REZONE 1250 EAST MICHIGAN AVENUE, BEING PARCEL ID# K-11-10-107-011, 
FROM ITS CURRENT B-3 (GENERAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
TO IRO (INDUSTRIAL, RESEARCH, OFFICE) DISTRICT ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
 

6. RESOLUTION 2018-12, AUTHORIZING THE DIVISION OF A PLATTED LOT IN 
COUNTRY CLUB PARK SUBDIVISION PARCEL ID# K-11-07-440-016 
 

7. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 
ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 669 WOBURN/1490 CONCORD IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
8. AUTHORIZATION TO COMMIT $81,000.00 IN COST SHARING WITH THE CITY OF 

YPSILANTI FOR THE PAVING AND IMPROVEMENTS FOR EMERICK ST. BETWEEN 
GROVE RD. AND THE SERVICE DR. WITH AN AGREEMENT AND BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO BE BROUGHT BACK TO THE BOARD FOR APPROVAL 

 
9. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 

COMMISSION FOR 2018 LOCAL ROAD DUST CONTROL IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,682.60 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-212-000-818-006 

 
10. REQUEST TO CANCEL MAY 1, 2018 BOARD MEETING DUE TO MAY 8, 2018 SPECIAL 

ELECTION 
 

 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
1. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD THE LOW BID AND DESIGNATE TRENDSET 

COMMUNICATIONS GROUP AS THE TOWNSHIP PREFERRED NETWORK CABLE 
INSTALLER UNTIL APRIL 2020 
 

2. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT OF THE ROOF AT FIRE STATION #3 20 S. HEWITT 

 
3. REQUEST OF CARL GIRBACH, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES FOR APPROVAL TO WAIVE 

THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND AWARD THE LOW QUOTE TO J.W. TURF FOR 
PURCHASE OF A JOHN DEERE PROGATOR 202OA IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,827.35 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-970-000-977-000 AND FOR APPROVAL TO TRADE IN 
A 1995 GEHL SKID STEER 

 
 

        
OTHER BUSINESS  

 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Doe, Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                        Monica Ross-Williams and Jimmie Wilson, Jr. 
 

Members Absent:  none 

 

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters  

 

1. MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE DIVIDEND PRESENTATION..... 
JUDITH THOMSON-TOROSIAN, MML 

 
Judith Thomson-Torosian stated the Township received their dividend check for 
$19,144.00 last month. She said the MML Liability and Property Pool Board decided 
they would like to continue to give the Township a dividend check as long as they 
can so they will be voting in September for the 2019 dividend. 

 
2. WASHTENAW COUNTY SOLID WASTE PLAN……….EVAN PRATT, 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS (see attached) 
 
Evan Pratt, Director of Public Works stated they have spent about two years 
working on the Solid Waste Plan. He said this plan was to make sure there was 
landfill capacity in or close to the County for all the communities in the County for 
at least a ten-year period.  
 
Noelle Bowman, Solid Waste Program Specialist, distributed a packet regarding 
solid waste and explained the plan to the Board. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if they had someone who could put together a mailer so 
residents could have information about compost and recycling. Evan Pratt said they 
did not have anyone that was doing that per municipality but with the regional 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
recycling initiative, the county may be able to mail the information out to the 
entire region. 
 
Trustee Wilson stated that our residential recycling rate of 33% was about double 
that of the state average and the commercial rate was 12%. He asked how the 
county commercial reycling rate compares with the state average. Ms. Bowman 
said the state average combines both commercial and residential together and 
they come up at 14%. She said the County separates the commercial and 
residential. She said that helps them to see that residential recycling is above 
average and commercial recycling is slightly below the state average. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked about disposing pharmaceuticals. Ms. Bowman stated 
that in 2008 Washtenaw County was the first County in the State to have a 
program to take back pharmaceuticals. Mr. Pratt said when checking water for 
pharmaceuticals it could only be checked for each specific pharmaceutical and not 
as a whole. He said an example would be checking for vitamins or checking for 
aspirin, etc. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the cost to recycle has gone up so much and 
sometimes there was no product for the recyclables.  Mr. Pratt said that was true 
and the Action Team would be focusing on end uses for the recyclables. He said 
they would be happy to purchase a glass crusher but if there was no place to sell 
the crushed glass then why should they purchase a glass crusher.  Mr. Pratt said 
there were others that were researching what to do with recyclables. 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW…………………………….SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 20,2018 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 

MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1.  STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 3, 2018 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$507,802.62 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE – (provided under Other Business) 
 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. RESOLUTION 2018-06, APPROVAL OF THE WASHTENAW COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2017 AMENDMENT (TABLED AT THE MARCH 
6, 2018 REGULAR MEETING) –Discussed later in the Work Session 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained the $10,000.00 CTAP Grant we get from the 
Convention and Visitors Bureau requires a 10% match from the Township, which 
was $2,000.00, and that the grant would be used for adding additional signage 
throughout the Township. 
 

2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
OHM FOR PROPOSAL FOR PLAYSCAPE LAYOUT AND BID PACKAGE 
PREPARATION AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE SERVICES FOR FORD 
LAKE PARK, NORTH BAY PARK, AND LOONFEATHER POINT PARK IN A 
NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $16,740.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-
212-000-931-775       

 
Supervisor Stumbo explained the Township was replacing play equipment at some 
of the Township Parks. 
 
Matt Parks, OHM, stated he has been working with Carl Girbach and they had 
visited the parks. He said they visited each park and scoped out what would be 
needed at each park. He said this budget would help them get everything in order 
to go out for bid.  
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 

3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FROM CARLISLE WORTMAN 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR UPDATE OF PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER 
PLAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $19,795.00 BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #212-212-000-801-000 (Discussed later under Other Business) 

 
4. REQUEST OF BRIAN MCCLEERY, ASSISTANT ASSESSOR FOR 

AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT 138 S. HARRIS ROAD PARCEL 
ID K#11-10-180-007 

   
Clerk Lovejoy Roe suggested that this request be tabled until Brian McCleery could 
clarify if someone was interested in purchasing this property.   Supervisor Stumbo 
stated with vacant property in the township the policy has been to sell it to the 
adjacent property owners.  Trustee Wilson asked if Habitat for Humanity would be 
interested in this property or do they just renovate houses.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe 
stated that eventually Habitat would run out of houses to renovate and would 
need to begin to purchase property to build new houses.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this request would be tabled until the next meeting. 
 

6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 167 N. FORD BLVD IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$10,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
Michael Radzik, OCS Director explained that this property had been under code 
enforcement since 2016. He said the current owner purchased the home out of 
mortgage foreclosure in late summer of 2016. Mr. Radzik stated it was first 
inspected in November, 2016 with an administrative search warrant because the 
owner failed to comply with the Townships’ vacant property ordinance. He said 
after the warrant was administered the owner registered the property as a rental 
property. Mr. Radzik said the owner began to renovate the house but did not pull 
the proper permits and at this time, the renovation is not completed. He said they 
attempted to inspect the house again in February, 2018 and had no cooperation 
from the owner. He said they again had to administer a search warrant and 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
because of the condition of the property, the Certificate of Occupancy was 
revoked.  
 

5. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL 
OF SERVICE CONTRACT WITH US ECOLOGY FOR INDUSTRIAL CLEANING 
AND CONFINED SPACE SERVICES AT THE HYDRO STATION IN AMOUNTS 
DETAILED IN THE QUOTES BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #252-252-000-818-
013  

 
7. RESOLUTION 2018-08, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 

OBERUN 5K ON JULY 20, 2018 
 

8. RESOLUTION 2018-09, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 
RUNNING FIT  “RUN SCREAM RUN” 5K, 10K, AND KID’S MILE RUN ON 
OCTOBER 13, 2018     

 
9. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY AND ACCEPT THE COMMUNITY 

TOURISM ACTION PLAN (CTAP) GRANT FROM THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY VISITORS AND CONVENTION BUREAU IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$10,000.00 WITH A CONTRIBUTING MATCH FROM YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,000.00 FOR WAYFINDING SIGNAGE BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #212-970-000-975-170     

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters stated that the office has prepared affidavits which will be 
recorded tomorrow regarding the ongoing number of violations at both the 
Thurston and Kettering Elementary Schools in the Ypsilanti Community School 
District. He said these violations are very serious. He said after they met with the 
Superintendent of Ypsilanti Community Schools in March he thought they had 
reached an agreement with them to take care of these violations by demolishing 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
both buildings. He said Ypsilanti Community Schools have responsibilities to the 
Township, to the school district, and to the community to deal with these 
abandoned buildings. Attorney Winters stated that since January 3, 2018, Bill Elling, 
Township Inspector has gone out to Kettering 34 times and Thurston 32 times for 
problems at those buildings. He said he has contacted Ypsilanti Community Schools 
to get us an update with the progress and he has not received a response. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the sale of the Holmes Road cell tower easement should 
be completed within 45 days, which will result in a $175,000.00 payment to the 
Township as well as any potential revenue sharing on a 50/50 basis. 
 
Attorney Winters stated there were ongoing efforts to have DTE release funds from 
the Hydro escrow account. He said this escrow account was set up 25 years ago to 
make sure the Township fulfilled its contractual obligations to Detroit Edison. He 
said it was time for DTE to release the entire escrow account to the Township since 
these contractual obligations have been met. 
 
Attorney Winters stated they were trying to get compensation from the City of 
Ypsilanti’s Insurance Company to the Township Fire Department for leasing a fire 
truck to the City of Ypsilanti for approximately ten months when the City lost a fire 
truck due to an accident on I-94. 
 
Attorney Winters stated they were continuing to work with ACM on the PILOT – 
Payment In Lieu of Taxes to the Township. 
 
Attorney Winters stated at the next board meeting he hoped to have the 
Teamsters Contract to present to the board. He said there was a tentative 
agreement and the Teamsters are going through their process with their members. 
 
Attorney Winters stated in March they met with the negotiating team for AFSCME 
but that negotiating team was not available to meet again until April. He said they 
should be meeting with them again this month. 

 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 WORK SESSION MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 

3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FROM CARLISLE WORTMAN 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR UPDATE OF PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $19,795.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#212-212-000-801-000 

 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Workman Associates, updated the Board regarding the  
Recreation Master Plan. He said updating the Recreation Master Plan was required 
by the State to be done every five years. Mr. Carlisle said having a Recreation Plan 
enables us to apply for grants. He said they would work closely with the Park 
Commission and it would take about 9 months to complete the plan.  He said they 
would begin in May. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated as an Ypsilanti Public School graduate he was extremely 
disappointed with Ypsilanti Community Schools in the way they were handling 
Kettering and Thurston Schools. He proposed to the Board that they move forward 
tonight authorizing the Township to take action in Circuit Court on those two 
properties if necessary. He said he does not like bringing action against Ypsilanti 
Community Schools but feels there was no other way to get this resolved. 
 
The Board agreed to add to the Agenda at the Regular Meeting. 
 
Work session adjourned at 6:48 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Doe, Trustees:  Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                        Monica Ross-Williams, and Jimmie Wilson, Jr. 
 

Members Absent:  none 

  

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Kaiser, Township Resident stated she would encourage everyone to vote for 
the millage for the Fire Department. 
 
Mr. Hodak, Township Resident stated it appeared to him that almost everyone he 
has spoken to in the Township, lawmaking body and residents are in agreement 
with him that the Township needs to adopt a snow ordinance. Mr. Hodak gave 
examples on how this ordinance would work. 
 
Ms. Kaiser, Township Resident stated she was against the snow ordinance in 
neighborhoods. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 20, 2018 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 3, 2018 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$507,802.62 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT  
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE – given at the work session 
 
 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. RESOLUTION 2018-06, APPROVAL OF THE WASHTENAW COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2017 AMENDMENT (TABLED AT THE MARCH 
6, 2018 REGULAR MEETING)  

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
remove from Table. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Resolution 2018-06, Approval of the Washtenaw County Solid Waste 
Management Plan 2017 Amendment (see attached). 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Budget Amendment #7 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
  

2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH OHM 
FOR PROPOSAL FOR PLAYSCAPE LAYOUT AND BID PACKAGE 
PREPARATION AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE SERVICES FOR FORD LAKE 
PARK, NORTH BAY PARK, AND LOONFEATHER POINT PARK IN A NOT TO 
EXCEED AMOUNT OF $16,740.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-212-000-
931-775     

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve the Professional Services Agreement with OHM for Proposal for 
Playscape Layout and Bid Package Preparation and Landscape Architecture 
Services for Ford Lake Park, North Bay Park, and Loonfeather Point Park in a Not 
to Exceed Amount of $16,740.00 Budgeted in Line Item #212-212-000-931-775 
(see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FROM CARLISLE WORTMAN 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR UPDATE OF PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $19,795.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#212-212-000-801-000 
 

A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve the Proposal From Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. for the Update of 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan in an Amount Not to Exceed $19,795.00 
Budgeted in Line Item #212-212-000-801-000 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. REQUEST OF BRIAN MCCLEERY, ASSISTANT ASSESSOR FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS TO SELL YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT 138 S. HARRIS ROAD PARCEL 
ID K#11-10-180-007       

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to Table 
this request until next meeting. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL OF 
SERVICE CONTRACT WITH US ECOLOGY FOR INDUSTRIAL CLEANING AND 
CONFINED SPACE SERVICES AT THE HYDRO STATION IN AMOUNTS 
DETAILED IN THE QUOTES BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #252-252-000-818-
013(see Attached)  

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations for Approval of Service 
Contract with US Ecology for Industrial Cleaning and Confined Space Services at 
the Hydro Station in Amounts Detailed in the Quotes Budgeted in Line Item #252-
252-000-818-013. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 
LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 167 N. FORD BLVD IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Mike Radzik, OCS Director for Authorization to Seek Legal 
Action if Necessary to Abate Public Nuisance for Property Located at 167 N. Ford 
Blvd in the Amount of $10,000.00 Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-801-023. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. RESOLUTION 2018-08, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 
OBERUN 5K ON JULY 20, 2018 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Resolution 2018-08, Temporary Road Closure Request for Oberun 5k on 
July 20, 2018 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. RESOLUTION 2018-09, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 
RUNNING FIT “RUN SCREAM RUN” 5K, 10K, AND KID’S MILE RUN ON 
OCTOBER 13, 2018   

 
A motion was made by Trustee Jarrell Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Resolution 2018-09, Temporary Road Closure Request for Running Fit 
“Run Scream Run” 5K, 10K, and Kid’s Mile Run on October 13, 2018 (see 
attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

9. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY AND ACCEPT THE COMMUNITY 
TOURISM ACTION PLAN (CTAP) GRANT FROM THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 
VISITORS AND CONVENTION BUREAU IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
WITH A CONTRIBUTING MATCH FROM YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $2,000.00 FOR WAYFINDING SIGNAGE BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #212-970-000-975-170       

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Wilson to Approve 
the Request for Authorization to Apply and Accept the Community Tourism 
Action Plan (CTAP) Grant From the Washtenaw County Visitors and Convention  
Bureau in the Amount of $10,000.00 with a contributing Match From Ypsilanti 
Township in the Amount of $2,000.00 for Wayfinding Signage Budgeted in Line 
Item #212-970-000-975-170 (see attached).     
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
take Legal Action if Necessary to Abate the Public Nuisance for the Properties 
located at 1633 Knowles, also Known as Kettering School and 181 Oregon, also 
Known as Thurston School. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Adjourn. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 3, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 
 



                     Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 

A Resolution to Approve the Washtenaw 
County Solid Waste Management Plan 

2017 Amendment 

 
 

WHEREAS, Part 115 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 

Protection Act, 194 PA 451, as enforced by the Michigan Department of 

Environmental Quality (MDEQ), requires each Michigan County to have a Solid 

Waste Management Plan to assure that solid waste generated in the county is 

collected and recovered, processed or disposed of for a ten-year period at 

facilities that comply with state laws and rules; and 

Whereas, in furtherance of the statutory requirements, the Washtenaw 

County Board of Commissioners appointed a 14-member Solid Waste Planning 

Committee in August 2015 to amend Washtenaw County’s 1999 Solid Waste 

Management Plan; and 

Whereas, pursuant to Michigan statue, the draft Solid Waste Management 

Plan amendment was opened to a lengthy and robust public comment period, held 

from April through October 2017; and  

Whereas, the Plan language promotes municipal and residential 

coordination and collaboration with Washtenaw County to provide integrated solid 

waste management programs and policies that emphasize waste prevention, 

reduction, recycling and composting; and 

Whereas, on December 6, 2017, the Washtenaw County Solid Waste 

Management Plan 2017Amemdnemt was formally approved by the Washtenaw 

County Board of Commissioners and will next be presented to the twenty-eight 

jurisdictions within Washtenaw County for their consideration and action for 

approval prior to submittal to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 

for final approval.  

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

supports the Washtenaw County Solid Waste Management Plan 2017 

Amendment; and 

 

 



Be It Further Resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti approves 

the Washtenaw County Solid Waste management Plan 2017 Amendment, and 

supports the Plan being submitted to the submitted to the Michigan Department of 

Environmental Quality for final approval. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2018-06 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 3, 2018. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2018 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7

April 3, 2018

AMOUNTS ROUNDED TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $12,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 212-000-000-699.000 $2,000.00

WCCVB-CTAP WAYFINDING PROJECT 212-000-000-575.000 $10,000.00

Net Revenues $12,000.00

Expenditures: WCCVB-CTAP WAYFINDING GRANT 212-970-000-975.170 $12,000.00

Net Expenditures $12,000.00

Request to set up two new budget lines to track the Washtenaw County Convention and Visitor's Bureau - 

Community Tourism Action Plan (CTAP) Wayfinding Project grant.  The total project will be $12,000 for signs in the 

community with a grant reimbursement for $10,000.  The Township's $2,000 portion will be funded by an 

Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance with $10,000 funded by the grant.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2018 Budget (#7): 

 

 

 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads, General (BSRII) Fund budget by 

$12,000 to $1,779,163 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 

March 20, 2018 
 
 
Ms. Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: Proposal for Playscape Layout and Bid Package Preparation  
 Professional Engineering and Landscape Architecture Services 
 
 
Dear Ms. Stumbo: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide Professional Engineering and Landscape 
Architecture Services for Ford Lake Park, North Bay Park, and Loon Feather Point Park. These improvements are 
being performed at several different parks to replace and/or upgrade the current play structures for overall structure 
functionality improvements and safety.      
 
This proposal provides key personnel and project manager contact information as well as project understanding, 
deliverables, schedule, and fee estimation.  
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
The project consists of laying out different variations of play structures at three (3) different Township Parks – Ford 
Lake Park, North Bay Park and Loon Feather Point Park (off Grove Road).  The Township also collected quotes 
from three (3) different vendors and received quotes that ranged significantly.  The Township has requested OHM 
Advisors’ assistance to prepare a combined bid package for consistency with bids and optimize efficiency as well as 
gain an economy of scale with all three areas being bid together.  Overall, there will be a total of five (5) new 
structures, three of which are smaller structures proposed for Ford Lake Park.   
 
OHM Advisors has been asked to review the documentation provided by the Township, meet with Township staff, 
and outline the details needed for bidding to prepare a package to bid publicly.  It is understood that the Township 
staff will be taking on some of the tasks such as field layout, site preparation and clearing, the majority of field 
observation as well as contract administration during the construction phase.  OHM will provide services as needed 
during the construction phase. 
 
We offer the scopes of services for the completion of this project. This proposal outlines information for project 
scope, deliverables, and schedule, as well as any assumptions that were made.  
 
SCOPE 
 
As described below this scope is limited to the following areas:   
 

• Ford Lake Park – Three (3) Playscapes (smaller variety) located near the Beach, Shelter #2, and Shelter 
#3.  Miscellaneous earth balancing may be required.   



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Grove Road Pathway Extension 
March 20, 2018  
Page 2 of 4 

 

• Loon Feather Point Park – Replace one (1) existing structure with a larger Playscape structure.  Remove 
swings down the hill (performed by Township).  There is potential for minor tree removal. 

• North Bay Park – Replace one (1) existing structure with a larger Playscape structure in the same location. 
 
 
Task 1 - Kickoff meeting and review of Township materials 
A kickoff meeting will be scheduled once we have reviewed materials.  The external meeting will require a site visit 
follow-up to review details and program elements requested by the Township.   Estimated hours are outlined 
below: 

o Internal kick off (held on 3/15/18) – 1 hour 
o Site meeting/Kickoff with Township staff  – 4 hours 
o Review information provided and identify program elements for each site - 4 hours 

 

Task 2 – Field data collection and layout  
Upon completion of the onsite meeting with Township staff, our staff will measure and identify key elements on a 
map to include in the specifications.  This may include measuring by hand or use of a GPS devise.  We anticipate 8 
hours of effort for this task.   
 
Task 3 – Preliminary and Final Specifications and Final Bid Package Assembly 
In order to develop the necessary specifications, OHM will follow the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engineering 
Standards and Design Specifications. These specifications will pertain to specific items relevant to this project as 
well as the special instructions to bidders, supplemental specifications, and a method of payment for the contractor’s 
use.  The bid package will require the necessary bonding, prevailing wage information, and insurance requirements 
as well as a bid form that will allow the Township to compare bids on an “apples to apples” basis. After completion 
of the design, the Township will be provided with two (2) hard copies of the package for review along with an 
updated final engineer’s opinion of probable cost. Final adjustments to the package will then be made based on 
Township comments prior to advertising and bidding.  Specific task items and estimated hours are outlined below:   
 

o PDF/Technical section preparation to identify play structure locations – 8 Hours 
o Identify play structure elements and prelim surface details – 10 hours  
o Meet with Township to verify layout and assumptions – 2 hours 
o Finalize PDF graphics & organize layout – 12 hours 
o Finalize specs & details – 12 hours  

 
Task 4 – Bidding 
The final bid package will be provided to the Township to be posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network (MITN). OHM will conduct the bid process and conduct a bid opening. OHM can also hold an onsite 
pre-bid conference with potential bidders if requested by the Township and if the schedule allows. OHM will address 
any questions and/or any Requests for Information (RFI’s) received by the bidding contractors during the bid phase. 
OHM will hold a bid opening at the Township on the date specified in the bid documents. Bids will be received, 
read aloud, collected, tabulated, and reviewed. A letter recommending which contractor would best be suited to 
construct the project will then be provided to the Township for their use.  We have assumed 24 hours for this task.  
Overall project management of the tasks above are also included in this time.   
 
Task 5 – Construction Oversight Assistance – As-needed 
While we anticipate the Township to take the lead on administering the contract and providing project oversight, 
we also foresee that OHM will be needed on a limited basis to assist with interpreting contract documents, assisting 
with layout, answering RFI’s and/or reviewing shop drawings, and attending progress or preconstruction meetings.  
We have set this up as an hourly budget to assist when requested by the Township staff assigned to this project and 



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Grove Road Pathway Extension 
March 20, 2018  
Page 3 of 4 

 

feel that we can assist within the budget provided.   This task would also allow us to assist with the final execution 
of the contract and verification of proper closeout.   
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
Task Deliverable 
Task 3 Bidding and Design Package 
Task 4 Final Bidding Package (Reviewed by Township Attorney) 
Task 4 Recommendation of Award Letter 

 
KEY PERSONNEL 
This project team has been specifically selected to best meet the technical aspects of the design and facilitate 
coordination with the Township. G2 Consulting Group will offer geotechnical services if needed. Below is a list of 
key personnel and their role on this project. 
 

Project Team Members Role on Project Specific Duties 
Matthew Parks, PE Project Manager 

 
Client Contract  
 

Ben Weaver, RLA, ASLA Landscape Architect 
 

Project Manager and Lead design 

Sarah Huddas Urban Designer  Project design 

 
ASSUMPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 
 

� Construction oversight assistance would be hourly and only as requested by Township staff.  The proposed 
budget will be monitored and if additional assistance is needed beyond the budget outlined, OHM will 
formerly request a budget amendment through the Township Board.   

� Design beyond the Playscape layout is not included.  Additional design to address drainage issues, parking 
lot modifications, pedestrian walkways, landscaping, etc. is not included in the scope of services.   

� Survey staking and topographic survey is not included 
� Any additional tasks outside of the above scope of services can be conducted at an hourly rate or as 

negotiated between the Township and OHM Advisors (OHM). Additional work will not be conducted prior 
to Township authorization. 

� Any meetings in addition to the meetings outlined in the above scope are not included in the scope of 
services but can be attended upon request. Time spent for these meetings will be charged on an hourly basis. 

 
FEE 
 
OHM Advisors will invoice the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the above stated services on an hourly not-to-
exceed basis, in accordance with our 2015 Rate Schedule. Invoices will be sent monthly as work is performed.  
 
Design Tasks Design Fee 

Task 1   $1,180.00 

Task 2 $1,000.00 

Task 3 $5,360.00 

Task 4 $3,200.00 

Task 5 (as needed) $6,000.00  

Total $16,740.00 (Hourly – NTE) 

The total fee is estimated to be $16,740.00.  Additional services can be provided on a time and material basis, as 
requested. 





 

Richard K. Carlisle, President    Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President    John L. Enos, Principal 

   David Scurto, Principal   Benjamin R. Carlisle, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal    Craig Strong, Principal    R. Donald Wortman, Principal   

Laura K. Kreps, Associate     Paul Montagno, Associate 

 
March 26, 2018 
 
Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Ypsilanti Township 
Tilden R. Stumbo Civic Center 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 
 
RE: Proposal of Services for Recreation Plan Update 
  
Dear Ms. Stumbo: 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates is pleased to submit a proposal of services to update your 
Recreation Plan.  Our previous work with the Township and our recreation planning experience 
makes us well-qualified to assist you in the development of this plan.  In addition, we are well-
acquainted with the current Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) requirements 
for recreation plan and grant application submittals.  We propose for the Ypsilanti Township Park 
Commission to have an active role by serving as the advisory committee in the planning process.     

We are enclosing a work plan, timeline, and fees for your review.  While the deadline for 
submission of Recreation Master Plans is March 1, 2019, the MDNR accepts plans throughout the 
year. We are proposing to complete the plan well before March 1, 2019, which affords plenty of 
time to coordinate and submit for next year’s round of grant applications.   

If the Township prefers to have CWA present at additional meetings, the time will be billed at our 
standard hourly rates.  

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.   

Sincerely, 

CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INC. 

         
  



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

March 26, 2018 

 

 

 

2 
 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
Work Plan, Timeline, and Fees 

 

 
The object of this project is to update the Ypsilanti Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan and prepare 
a document that will both act as a useful tool for the Township and meet the requirements set forth by the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR).  The primary goal of the Master Plan is to provide a clear 
direction for the Parks and Recreation over the next five years and to articulate a vision for long-term 
development of recreation in the community.   
 

Project Highlights 

The main tasks of the Master Plan include: 
 

• An updated community profile,  

• The formulation of recreation goals and objectives for the community as well as a specific 
capital improvement schedule including costs, and  

• Implementation strategies addressing priority and funding. 
 
The following work plan details the tasks described above.  In addition, a timeline with fees further describes 
when each task would be completed. 

  



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

March 26, 2018 

 

 

 

3 
 

W o r k  P l a n  
 

  
1. Community Profile 

• Update the demographic, physical, and land use characteristics of the community using US 
Census and other available information.   

• Update the description of the current administrative structure of the Township and the role 
of recreation in the community.  This will include a description of the volunteers and any 
partnerships with other organizations such as schools or private recreation providers. 

• Acquire current GIS data and aerial imagery and prepare updated local and regional inventory 
maps. 

2.  Recreation Inventory 

• Update the description of the Township’s recreation and trail facilities, as well as the 
recreation facilities of nearby communities, the county, and schools.  Input from Township 
staff and Park Commission will be used. 

• Analyze the inventory data along with the community description and formulate conclusions 
regarding opportunities and needs for the community’s recreation system.  The analysis will 
also provide a comparison to national recreation standards. 

• Assist Township staff with ADA assessment of recreation facilities.  

3. Public Participation and Needs Assessment 

The MDNR requires all communities receive input from their constituents as part of the planning 
process. With this in mind, we suggest the following:  

• Work with the Ypsilanti Township Park Commission, who will serve as the advisory committee 
for the planning process.  

• Conduct an Open House to receive input from residents on desired Township recreation 
improvements and invite community interest groups such as sports organizations, seniors, and 
other community stakeholders.  The open house will serve to define the goals and objectives 
of the plan and establish priorities for future direction.  Township staff will be responsible for 
advertising the open house; CWA will help facilitate the meeting. 

• Create and monitor an online survey to be hosted on Survey Monkey. CWA will set up the 
survey and analyze the results and provide it to Township staff to help further inform the 
decision making process.  

4.  Master Plan 

• Develop draft plan using MDNR guidelines. 

• Submit draft plan to the Park Commission for review and comments.  Revise draft accordingly. 

• Submit draft plan for the 30-day public review. 

• Receive comments, discuss revisions, and submit for approval to the Park Commission. 

• Public hearing at a Township Board of Trustees meeting followed by Plan adoption. 

• Assemble adoption papers and prepare certification checklist. 

• Submit plan to regional and county agencies. 

• Submit final plan to MDNR. 



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

March 26, 2018 

 

 

 

4 
 

This last task will be done with assistance from Township staff for preparing and publishing notices in 
local newspaper, the Township website, social media, and other locations. 

 

T i m e l i n e  
 

 

The proposed timeline below can be adjusted to best meet the needs of Township staff and other 
stakeholders, although leaving ample time for public commentary is strongly encouraged. 

April 2018 KO  Kick Off 

On-site kick-off meeting with Park Commission and staff to discuss 
plan, tour/photograph facilities, and complete ADA assessment.  

Complete community profile and recreation inventory using 
information from staff. 

Create and begin collecting data via online survey. 

 Mailing 

CWA will assist the Township in the creation of a mailing to be sent 
describing Recreation Plan update and announcing upcoming open 
house and meeting dates.   

May 2018 

(To be determined) 

OH  Open House 

CWA to facilitate Open House to receive input from residents, 
community interest groups, and other community stakeholders. 
Assist staff with preparation of advertising for Open House.  

June 2018   Prepare complete draft report and submit to Park Commission for 
review; revise accordingly. 

July 2018 

(To be determined) 

PC  Park Commission Meeting 

Review draft document and discuss any changes. 

Action requested:  Approve draft plan for public review. 

   30-day public review of draft plan  

The draft master plan is made available for public review at several 
locations in the community. 

A notice of the availability of draft plan for public review and 
comment must be published in local newspaper and incorporated 
in the Plan. 



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

March 26, 2018 

 

 

 

5 
 

September 2018 

(To be determined) 

PC  Park Commission Meeting  

Receive comments and discuss any needed revisions.  

Action requested:  Formal approval and recommendation for 
Township Board adoption. Note that formal approval must be 
granted after the completion of the 30-day community review 
process. 

September 2018 PH  Township Board of Trustees Meeting 

Public Hearing.  The public hearing must be published in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act, at least fifteen days prior 
to the meeting in at least one newspaper with a general 
circulation.  The notice and minutes of the public hearing need to 
be incorporated in the plan.  

Township Board of Trustees Meeting.   Adoption of the plan. 

Action Requested:  Adoption of the Master Plan after the public 
hearing conditional upon any potential changes resulting from the 
public hearing. 

October 2018   Submit Plan to MDNR. Upload final document to MDNR system 
prior to March 1, 2019 deadline. 

PC: Parks Commission Meeting 

PH: Public Hearing – Township Board Adoption 

KO:  Kick-off Meeting 

OH:  Open House 
  



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

March 26, 2018 

 

 

 

6 
 

F e e s  
 

 
 

Task  
 

Principal 
Ben Carlisle 
(hours) 

Project Manager 
Megan Masson-
Minock 
(hours) 

Project Planner 
Chris Nordstrom 
(hours) 

GIS / 
Graphics 
Planner 

Support  
Staff 

Project Initiation – Kickoff Meeting, Parks 
tour & photographs, ADA Assessment 

4 4 16 - 4 

Community Description 2 12 4 4 4 

Recreation / Resource Inventory 2  16 16 - 

Public Participation and Needs Assessment 8 22 20 12 - 

Master Plan 4 10 30 30 8 

Total Hours 20 48 86 62 16 

Hourly Rate $105/hr. $92.50/hr. $92.50/hr. $70/hr. $60/hr. 

Fee $2,100 $4,440 $7,955 $4,340 $960 

  
 
Project Cost Not to Exceed:     $ 19,795 
 
Meetings: Five meetings are included in the proposal: a kickoff meeting / park tour, two Parks Commission 
meetings, a Community Open House, and a Public Hearing/Adoption meeting with the Township Board.  
Additional meetings can be accommodated as needed and will be billed at hourly rates. 
 

 
  





CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-08 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard to enter Rolling Hills on Friday, July 20, 2018 from 6:30 p.m. to 7:15 
p.m. for the Oberun 5K to benefit Karen’s Trail/Friends of the Border to 
Border Trail. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2018-08 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 3, 2018. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard on Saturday, October 13, 2018 from 8:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. for the 
Run Scream Run 5K, 10K and Kid’s Mile to benefit the March of Dimes of 
Southeastern Michigan. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2018-09 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 3, 2018. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 













         OFFICE OF THE TREASURER
                     LARRY J. DOE

MONTHLY TREASURER'S  REPORT
March 1, 2018 THROUGH March 28, 2018

Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
101 - General Fund 4,142,173.63 2,613,110.50 2,877,124.53 3,878,159.60
101 - Payroll 118,044.98 607,958.20 596,756.22 129,246.96
101 - Willow Run Escrow 143,119.42 48.62 0.00 143,168.04
206 - Fire Department 122,038.74 262,622.80 343,323.71 41,337.83
208 - Parks Fund 25,349.70 25.79 256.89 25,118.60
212 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 346,238.72 2,558.31 150,450.00 198,347.03
226 - Environmental Services 1,159,215.67 1,326.37 188,590.60 971,951.44
230 - Recreation 31,779.90 124,676.06 51,080.31 105,375.65
236 - 14-B District Court 189,097.33 199,404.42 124,828.66 263,673.09
244 - Economic Development 67,896.34 69.56 0.00 67,965.90
248 - Rental Inspections 103,888.18 11,359.70 20,262.41 94,985.47
249 - Building Department Fund 1,001,249.55 77,833.21 42,459.35 1,036,623.41
250 - LDFA Tax 19,441.18 19.93 0.00 19,461.11
252 - Hydro Station Fund 565,767.42 44,043.09 55,555.65 554,254.86
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 887,211.37 12,902.15 549,919.48 350,194.04
397 - Series "B" Cap. Cost of Funds 47,594.29 47.98 2,000.00 45,642.27
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 332,907.21 340.95 0.00 333,248.16
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 26,400.94 83,824.71 20,541.32 89,684.33
590 - Compost Site 727,213.43 4,753.56 14,760.00 717,206.99
595 - Motor Pool 254,182.96 343.21 2,279.75 252,246.42
701 - General Tax Collection 31,986.39 75,920.19 0.00 107,906.58
703 - Current Tax Collections 19,145,392.33 699,607.76 332,781.31 19,512,218.78
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,540,817.55 267,498.77 170,181.29 1,638,135.03
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 86,442.47 27.26 12,056.00 74,413.73
893 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 66,170.55 480.37 4,809.20 61,841.72
ABN AMRO Series "B" Debt Red. Cap.Int. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
GRAND  TOTAL 31,181,620.25 5,090,803.47 5,560,016.68 30,712,407.04



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



From : Brian McCleery 
<bmccleery@ytown.org>

Subject : Re: Request to Enter into 
Negotiations to Sell 138 S. 
Harris - Tabled 4-3-18

To : Lisa Garrett Stanfield 
<lstanfield@ytown.org>

Cc : Linda Gosselin 
<lgosselin@ytown.org>, 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 
<klovejoyroe@ytown.org>, 
Brenda Stumbo 
<bstumbo@ytown.org>

Zimbra lstanfield@ytown.org

Re: Request to Enter into Negotiations to Sell 138 S. 
Harris - Tabled 4-3-18

Fri, Apr 06, 2018 11:34 AM 

Lisa, Per conversations with Linda and Brenda 
on this property, please remove this request 
from the agenda.  As circumstances change, we 
may resubmit the Request to Negotiate at a 
later time.  

Thanks You,

Brian  

Brian McCleery
Assistant Assessor

Page 1 of 2Zimbra

4/13/2018https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=89629&tz=America/New_Yor...



Ypsilanti Township
734-487-4927

----- Original Message -----
From: "Lisa Garrett Stanfield" 
<lstanfield@ytown.org>
To: "Brian McCleery" <bmccleery@ytown.org>
Cc: "Linda Gosselin" <lgosselin@ytown.org>, 
"Karen Lovejoy Roe" <klovejoyroe@ytown.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 9:34:06 AM
Subject: Request to Enter into Negotiations to 
Sell 138 S. Harris - Tabled 4-3-18

Please see attached....

Lisa Stanfield 
Deputy Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197
(734) 484-4700

Page 2 of 2Zimbra

4/13/2018https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=89629&tz=America/New_Yor...



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2018 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

April 17, 2018

AMOUNTS ROUNDED TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $3,708.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,755.00

Net Revenues $1,755.00

Expenditures: Salary-Pay Out 101-227-000-708.004 $1,630.00

FICA&Medicare 101-227-000-715.000 $125.00

Net Expenditures $1,755.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,785.00

Net Revenues $1,785.00

Expenditures: Salary-Pay Out 101-253-000-708.004 $1,658.00

FICA&Medicare 101-253-000-715.000 $127.00

Net Expenditures $1,785.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $168.00

Net Revenues $168.00

Expenditures: Salary-Pay Out 101-265-000-708.004 $168.00

Net Expenditures $168.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 80 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 9 hours to be paid at 

75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 80 hours to be paid 

at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2018 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

April 17, 2018

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $18,828.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 212-000-000-699.000 $18,828.00

Net Revenues $18,828.00

Expenditures: Equipment 212-970-000-977.000 $18,828.00

Net Expenditures $18,828.00

226 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FUND Total Increase $35,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 226-000-000-699.000 $35,000.00

Net Revenues $35,000.00

Expenditures: Curbside Recycling Disposal 226-226-000-804.008 $35,000.00

Net Expenditures $35,000.00

584 - GOLF COURSE FUND Total Increase $4,300.00

Revenues: Misc Revenue - Insurance Reimbursed 584-000-000-694.004 $4,300.00

Net Revenues $4,300.00

Expenditures: Operating Supplies - Cart Rental 584-584-000-757.003 $4,300.00

Net Expenditures $4,300.00

Request to increase the budget for insurance reimbursement for stolen golf cart. This is funded by receipt of 

insurance check. 

Request to increase budget for Waste Management recycle drop off fees at the New Boston Recycle Center owned 

by Republic Services. The fees per ton have increased from an average of $10 to $78. Our average monthly 

tonnage is 120 tons at $10 per ton = $ 1,200 and at $78 per ton = $9,360. While we did increase the  budget for 2018 

to $95,000, we did not estimate an increase of 680%. This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund 

Balance.

Request to purchase a ProGator 2020A  for parks system and grounds.  The cost of the ProGator is $23,827.35 less 

a trade in value of an old skid steer for $5,000 for a total cost of $18,827.35.  This will be funded by an 

Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2018 Budget (#8): 

 

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $3,708 to $9,035,218 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads, General (BSRII) Fund budget by 

$18,828 to $1,797,991 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Environmental Services Fund by $35,000 to $2,801,876 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Golf Course Fund by $4,300 to $748,801 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
April 9, 2018 
 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo and Trustees 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
 
 
Dear Supervisor and Trustee Board, 
 
 
In service to the Township, I am requesting for the April 17, 2018 Township Board meeting to present the 
following item(s) for consideration: 
 

1) Approval of the revised Automatic Mutual Aid agreement with Van Buren Township. 
Attached you will find a copy of the 2018 revised agreement that adjusts response from Van 
Buren to Ypsilanti Township (YT). VB will change from 2 engines (4-FF) to 1 engine (2-FF) 
response to YT and formally add sections 5 and 6 located in the NW quadrant of Van Buren 
that were previously overlooked from original AMA agreement approved January of 2015. VB 
Fire Chief requested this due to personnel shortages and callback issues. 
 
YT proposes no response change to VB in part due to the introduction of regional grant funded 
Superior Twp. Ladder Truck that will cover all of YT.   
 
 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Fire Chief Eric Copeland 
Ypsilanti Township Fire Department 
 

 
Office (734) 544-4225 
Fire Chief (734) 544-4110 
Fire Marshal (734) 544-4107 
Fax (734) 544-4195 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
222 SOUTH FORD BOULEVARD 

YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN  48198-6067 



 

 
 
 

 
Washtenaw Area Mutual Aid Association 

Ypsilanti Township and Van Buren Township Fire Automatic Mutual Aid Program 
 
 
 
Purpose: 
This activity will be conducted under the auspices of the existing interlocal agreement as 
developed by the Washtenaw Area Mutual Aid Association (WAMAA). It will enhance the 
existing agreement by sharing resources to make available more firefighters and resources on 
the scene of a structure fire in the participating communities, while maintaining local control of 
resources. This enhanced response will afford greater safety for firefighters, improved 
efficiency and effectiveness in fire ground operations and enhance daily cooperative efforts so 
that in the event of a major, multi-jurisdictional incident, fire department command staff 
members from both agencies, as well as firefighters, would be accustomed to working together 
closely. This concept falls directly in line with federal, state, and local ideologies of regional 
cooperative efforts and, therefore, may enhance future funding opportunities for the 
participating communities. 
 
Scope: 
Participants in this agreement will include the Charter Township of Van Buren, Wayne County, 
Michigan, and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti in Washtenaw County, Michigan. 
 
Procedure: 
Upon dispatching the jurisdictional fire department to a reported "working" structure fire, 
meeting the below criteria, the jurisdictional dispatch center shall immediately contact the 
dispatch center for the other participating agency and request a response for "Automatic 
Mutual Aid" as per the agreement. 
 
Ypsilanti Township: Ypsilanti Township agrees to send two Fire Engines, a large fire suppression 
vehicle containing minimally 750 gallons of water, to Van Buren Township when a "working" 
(i.e. flames visible, heavy smoke visible, or an explosion was detected) structure fires reported 
in the southwestern six (6) mile section (located within the Ryznar Drive / Elwell Road, South 
Service Drive, Rawsonville Road, and Bemis Road area) and northwestern two (2) sections 
(located within the Beck Road, Ecorse Road, Rawsonvilie/ Michigan Bypass, and Mott Road 
area) of Van Buren Township .See attached Van Buren Township Map and refer to sections 5, 6, 
19, 20, 29, 30, 31,and 32. 
 



 

Van Buren Township: Van Buren Township agrees to send one (1) Fire Engine, as described 
above, to Ypsilanti Township when a "working" structure fire is reported in the southwestern 
eight (8) mile section of Ypsilanti Township) located within the Hitchingham Road, Textile Road, 
Rawsonville Road, and Bemis Road area). See attached Ypsilanti Township Map and refer to 
sections 25, 26,27, 28,33, 34,35, and 36. 
 
When dispatched to the scene of a working structure fire it is understood, unless otherwise 
directed by the scene's incident commander, that the agency providing the resource under this 
agreement will respond emergent (i.e.: lights and siren) with a minimum manpower of two 
firefighters. 
 
It is also understood that the incident commander will maintain full command authority over all 
responding resources. All participating departments shall utilize an accepted National Fire 
Academy Incident Command System (or similar). 
 
Efforts will be made to clear the Automatic Aid resources as quickly as possible after the fire is 
brought under control. 
 
Due to the dynamics of the fluctuating availability of resources and manpower it is understood 
that participating communities may not always be able to commit resources under this 
program. In those instances, the host community is to be notified as soon as possible so that 
they can request additional assistance from other departments. The intent of this automatic 
mutual aid agreement is for working structure fires under the conditions listed above. Its intent 
is to supplement resources & manpower but not to reduce fire department staffing by reliance 
on automatic aid. 
 
Agreement: 
We, as the authorized representatives of the below listed fire departments, agree to participate 
in the WAMAA Ypsilanti Township and Van Buren Township Fire Automatic Aid Program, 
contingent upon subsequent approval by the chief administrative officials and/or governing 
bodies of our respective municipalities. This program operates as an enhancement of, and in 
accordance with, the existing mutual aid interlocal agreement. 
 
This agreement will remain effective 30 days from the signature date below until terminated by 
either municipality’s governing board of trustees/ city council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
 Kevin McNamara     Brenda Stumbo 
Van Buren Township Supervisor     Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
 
Date: _______________________  Date: _______________________                   
 
 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
 Leon Wright     Karen Lovejoy-Roe 
Van Buren Township Clerk   Ypsilanti Township Clerk 
 
Date: _______________________  Date: _______________________                   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-07 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2018-477) 

 
Commercial and Industrial Business Registration  

 
 
 Whereas, the Township’s  Office of Community 

Standards  has recommend that the Ypsilanti Township 

Board adopt an Ordinance requiring  commercial and 

industrial businesses in Ypsilanti Township to register with 

the Office of Community Standards; and 

 Whereas, adoption of Business Registration Ordinance 

2018-477 will enable the Office of Community Standards to 

advise prospective commercial and industrial businesses, 

before their operations begin,  of applicable zoning and code 

requirements; and 

 Whereas, the information required in the proposed 

Ordinance includes an afterhours emergency contact 

number that may be used in case of a police or fire 

emergency; and  

 Whereas, the information required in the proposed 

Ordinance includes whether there are hazardous materials 

or substances within commercial or industrial business 

premises; and 

 Whereas,  knowledge that hazardous materials and 

substances are present in commercial and industrial 

buildings  is important for firefighters, law enforcement  and 



other emergency first responders in the event of an 

emergency; 

 Whereas, the Ordinance provides that all existing 

commercial and industrial businesses will have 120 days 

from the effective date of the Ordinance to register their 

businesses with the Office of Community Standards;   

 Now Therefore, 

 Be it resolved, that Ordinance No. 2018- 477   is 

hereby adopted by reference. 



 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Ordinance No. 2018-477 
 
 

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 22 of the Ypsilanti Charter 
Township Code of Ordinances by Adding a New Article 

Requiring Registration of Commercial and Industrial Businesses 
 
 
 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti ordains that the Charter Township 

Code of Ordinances is amended as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose 
 
 The purpose of this article concerning the registration of commercial 
and industrial businesses within the Township is to protect the health, safety, 
and welfare of persons in the Township by providing the Township with the 
information necessary to ensure compliance with safety, structure and fire 
laws; identify business activities and establishments which concern  zoning, 
occupancy, density of occupancy; the presence, storage and handling of 
hazardous materials; the physical condition of places where persons are 
employed or carry on trade, and the enforcement of the law, including local, 
state and federal laws, and regulations, applying to business establishments 
located within Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Section 2. Definitions. 
 
 The following terms when used in this article, shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in this section. 
  
 Business establishment means any lot, building or structure, or a part 
thereof, including without limitation, leased or occupied space in a mall, store 
or building, permanently located within Ypsilanti Township, from which: 1) a 
person(s) engages in or causes to be engaged in any act or acts of buying, 
selling, leasing, renting, or otherwise disposing of, performing or marketing, 
any goods, services, merchandise or commodities of any kind or description 
for commercial profit; 2) a person(s)  engages in industrial production of 
merchandise or commodities of any kind or description for commercial profit.
  
Section 3. Business Registration Certificate required. 
 
 No person, firm partnership or corporation shall, directly or indirectly, 
operate, conduct, maintain or manage any business establishment within 
Ypsilanti Township without first obtaining a business registration certificate 
issued pursuant to this article.  
 
Section 4. Business Registration Certificate required to be Posted.  
The business registration certificate shall be posted in a conspicuous place 
at or near the entrance the business so that it may be read at any time. 
 
 
Section 5. State license or permit not a substitute. 
 
 The fact that a license or permit has been granted to any person, firm, 
partnership or corporation by the state to engage in the operation, conduct, 
maintenance, or management of any business establishment shall not 



 

 2 

constitute an exemption from the necessity of procuring a business 
registration certificate as required by this article. 
 
Section 6. Application; form; contents. 
 
 Each person, firm, partnership or corporation required to procure a 
business registration certificate from the township shall make application for 
such certificate to the Office of Community Standards in the form and 
manner prescribed by that Office and shall state, under oath, such facts as 
may be prescribed for, or applicable to, the granting of such certificate, 
including the following: 
 

(a) The full name, business address, residence address, email 
address and telephone number of the owner or their agent. 

(b) The full name, email address and 24 hour emergency 
telephone number of the person to contact in the event of an 
emergency during non-business hours. 

(c) The address where the business will be located. 

(d) The nature and character of goods, wares, merchandise to be 
sold or offered for sale or services to be provided by the 
applicant. 

(e) The nature and kind of business establishment which the 
applicant proposes to conduct. 

(f) Whether any hazardous materials will be stored, kept or used 
at the business establishment premises. Hazardous materials 
are those chemicals or substances defined as such in the 
International Fire Code adopted by reference in Chapter 30, 
Section 26 (30-26) of the Township Code of Ordinances. 

Section 7.     Term. 
 
 A business registration certificate granted under this article shall be 
valid until the business establishment is transferred or sold to a new owner 
or if the business expands it use to include uses not listed in the original 
application.  
 
Section 8.  Separate premises. 
 
 If a business registration certificate holder intends to locate a business 
establishment at a new address in the jurisdiction, a business registration 
certificate issued for the new address is required before business is 
conducted at the new address. 
 
 
Section 9. Transferability. 
  
 A certificate of registration issued under this article is not transferable. 
If a business establishment is transferred or sold to a new owner or if the 
business establishment use expands  or changes to include uses not listed 
in the original application, a new  business registration application and 
certificate is required before business is conducted by the new owner or the 
new use is added to the business establishment. 
 
 



 

 3 

Section 10. Requirements for Certificate of Compliance; compliance 
with state law and township ordinances. 
 

(a) No certificate required by this article shall be issued to any 
applicant who is required to procure a license or permit from a 
state of federal agency until such applicant shall submit 
evidence that the required state or federal license or permit has 
been issued and that all applicable fees have been paid. 

(b)  No certificate shall be granted to any applicant until such 
applicant has complied with all the provisions of this article and 
other ordinances of the township pertaining to businesses for 
which an application for a certificate is made.  No certificate 
shall be granted, if the approval of any officer of the township is 
required, until such approval is made.  Approval in each 
instance shall mean written approval by the designated officer 
upon the face of the application for a certificate, subscribed by 
such officer, and the date of approval. 

Section 11. Certificate fees. 
 
 Business registration certificate fees shall be set from time to time by 
resolution of the township board for the cost of administering this ordinance 
including but not limited to zoning verification, building code compliance, and 
fire safety code compliance for any change of use or change of occupancy 
of commercial and industrial spaces as applicable, except that no fee shall 
be collected for initial registration of businesses in existence at the time of 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
   
Section 12. Fees; exemptions. 
 
 No registration fee shall be required from any applicant exempt from 
payment of the fee by state or federal law. 
 
Section 13. Denial, revocation and suspension. Right to Appeal. 
Hearing. 
 

Business registration certificates issued under this article may be 
revoked or suspended by the Director of Community Standards, at 
any time, for any of the following reasons: 

 
 (a) Fraud, misrepresentation or any false statement made in the 
application for  certificate; 

 (b) Fraud, misrepresentation or any false statement made in the 
operation of  the business establishment. 

 (c) Conducting a business establishment in an unlawful manner 
or in such a  manner as to  constitute a threat to the health, 
safety or welfare of the public. 

Section 14. Revocation/ suspension/denial of certificate; notice 
required. 
 
 Written notification of suspension/ revocation/denial of certificate, 
stating the causes for said action, shall be delivered to the certificate holder 
personally or mailed to his business address as shown on the application 
for license. 
 
 



 

 4 

Section 15. Right to Appeal. Hearing. Standard of Review. 
 

(a) A certificate holder has the right to appeal such 
suspension/revocation to the Township Board, provided a written 
request to appeal is filed with the Township Clerk within 10 days 
after the notice of suspension/revocation/denial of certificate is sent 
to the certificate holder at its business address as shown on the 
application for business registration certificate.  

(b) At the hearing before the Township Board, the certificate 
holder/applicant shall have the right to hear the evidence relied upon 
by the Director of Community Standards in determining to 
suspended/revoke/deny the certificate; and the right to present 
evidence and witnesses on his/her own behalf. 

(c) Following the hearing, the Township Board shall determine 
whether the decision to suspend/revoke/deny the certificate was 
supported by competent, material and substantial evidence.  A 
written statement of the Township Board’s findings and 
determination shall be made within 21 days after the conclusion of 
the hearing. 

Section 16. Penalty. 
 

(a) Persons, firms, partnerships or corporations who violate any 
section of this article shall be responsible for a municipal civil 
infraction as provided in Chapter 40, Article II, of this Code of 
Ordinances for the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 

(b) The imposition of a fine shall not relieve the business 
establishment from responsibility to correct the violation. All 
such persons, firms, partnerships or corporations shall be 
required to correct or remedy such situation or defects within a 
reasonable time and each act or violation and every day upon 
which said violation should occur shall constitute a separate 
offense. 

(c) The application of the penalty of this section shall not be held 
to prevent the enforcement removal of prohibited conditions by 
injunctive or other relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 17.    Severability. 

 Should any section, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance be declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect 
the validity of the Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the 
part as invalidated. 
 
Section 18.    Publication Clause. 
  
 This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation as required by law. 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 5 

Section 19.      Effective Date. 

 This Ordinance shall be effective 120 days after publication in a 
newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Procedure for administration of the Business Registration ordinance 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  April 3, 2018 
 
The Board of Trustees is considering a Business Registration ordinance that will require 
commercial and industrial businesses to register with the Office of Community Standards (OCS).  
This memorandum outlines the procedure to be used to administer the ordinance. 
 
Registration 
All commercial and industrial businesses are required to register using an application form 
provided by OCS.  A copy of the form is enclosed for reference.  The form requires reporting of 
information in accordance with provisions of the ordinance. 
 
Existing Businesses at Time of Ordinance Publication 
Businesses in existence on the date of publication of the adopted ordinance shall register with 
OCS by submitting a completed application form.  Qualifying existing businesses shall be 
exempt from fees and will not be inspected unless zoning or building code violations are 
reported or become known to exist. 
 
An existing business previously registered will be required to submit a new registration form 
and will be subject to zoning verification and building code inspection pursuant to approved 
fees for any of the following reasons: 

1. Change of ownership 
2. Relocation to a different physical space 
3. Expansion or significant change of the use originally reported 

 
New Businesses 
New businesses shall submit a completed application form and pay the required fees.  New 
business applications shall be subject to the following action steps: 

1. Be reviewed by the Planning Dept to verify compliance with zoning regulations; 
2. Be inspected to verify compliance with building and property maintenance codes; 
3. Be inspected to verify compliance with the fire safety code. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

If zoning compliance cannot be verified, the business registration application shall be denied 
with reasons for the denial provided.  A statement explaining appeal provisions of the 
ordinance shall be included with the denial document. 
 
If building, fire, or property maintenance code violations are observed, the violations shall be 
corrected prior to approval of the application.  Applicable building permits shall be obtained 
and receive final approval. 
 
Upon successful completion of the review process, a new Certificate of Occupancy shall be 
issued for the business premises. 
 
Record Keeping 
Upon receipt of a new application form, a Business Registration Certificate shall be created in 
the BS&A Permitting software system.  Components of the review process shall be tracked to 
completion within the new certificate record.  
 
Required information including emergency contact information and a list of hazardous 
materials stored on the premises shall be inputted into the software system so as to allow data 
to be reported and shared with public safety agencies. 
 
A Business Registry shall be maintained on the Township’s public website as a reference guide 
for residents and as a means to promote local businesses. 



7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 

 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION APPLICATION 
 

Non-Refundable Registration Fee - $200.00 
 

A business registration certificate granted under this article shall be valid until the business establishment is 
transferred or sold to a new owner or if the business expands its use to include uses not listed in the original 
application.  
 
_________________________________________ _____________________________________________________  
NAME OF BUSINESS  BUSINESS ADDRESS 

 
OWNER /AGENT INFORMATION 
 

__________________________________________________________________________   
OWNER / AGENT FULL NAME (PRINTED)  
 
_________________________________________ _________________________ ______ ______________  
OWNER / AGENT BUSINESS ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________ ______ ______________  
OWNER / AGENT RESIDENCE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP 
 
________________________________ _____________________________________________________________  
PHONE  EMAIL ADDRESS   

 
24-HOUR EMERGENCY CONTACT 
 
__________________________________________________________________________   
EMERGENCY CONTACT FULL NAME (PRINTED)  
 
________________________________ ____________________________________________________________  
PHONE  EMAIL ADDRESS 
   

1. Explain the nature and kind of business establishment to be conducted:  __________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. List the nature and character of goods, wares and merchandise to be sold, offered for sale or services to 
be provided:    

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________  



7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393  
 

Business License Registration Application 
Page 2 
 

3. Will any hazardous materials will be stored, kept or used at the business establishment premises? Hazardous 
materials are those chemicals or substances defined as such in the International Fire Code adopted by 
reference in Section 30-26 of the Township Code of Ordinances. 

 ________ No ________ Yes If yes, list all hazardous materials: ______________ 

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ _________________ 
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT  PRINTED NAME OF APPLICANT  DATE 

  

   
 

 

_____________________________________ ___ APPROVED ___ DENIED ____________________ 
ZONING COORDINATOR     DATE 
 
COMMENTS: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________         

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

____________________________________ ___ APPROVED ___ DENIED ____________________ 
BUILDIING OFFICIAL     DATE 
 

COMMENTS: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
_____________________________________ ___ APPROVED ___ DENIED ____________________ 
FIRE MARSHAL     DATE 
 
COMMENTS: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________          

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

Resolution No. 2018-10 
 

Professional Service Fees for Township, 
Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department 

 
 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014 the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
adopted Resolution No. 2014-36 Professional Service Fees for 
Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department, which fee 
schedule has from time to time been amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti wishes to amend 
Resolution No. 2014-36, Professional Service Fees for Township, 
Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department inclusive of all 
subsequent fee resolution amendments approved since adoption of 
Resolution No. 2014-36; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached Professional Services Fees for Township, 
Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department incorporate all of 
these changes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti specifically adopts and incorporates by reference the attached 
Professional Services Fees for Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer 
and Fire Department with hourly rate exhibits in its entirety. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any previous Professional Service 
Fees not in conformity with those contained in the attached fee 
schedule shall be repealed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Professional Service Fees for 
Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department shall 
become effective immediately. 



Professional Services Fees for
Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer 

and Fire Department 

Effective April 17, 2018

1-6

7
8

  9

- Fee Schedule
- Hourly Rate Schedules

• Carlisle Wortman Associates
• OHM Advisors
• Stantec Consulting
• Township Staff / Attorney       10    



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Pre‐Application Meeting $650 N/A $150 $125 $300 $75

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Rezoning $1,500 $1,500  $1,500 Hourly Hourly (If applicable) Hourly

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000 Township Planner Engineer Fire
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500 $500 Hourly Hourly Hourly
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,500
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $2,000 Township Planner Engineer Fire
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $2,500 $500 Hourly Hourly Hourly
greater than ten (10) acres: $2,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $1,200 Township Planner Engineer Fire
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $1,500 $100 Hourly Hourly Hourly
greater than ten (10) acres: $1,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000 Township Planner Engineer Fire
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500 $1,500 + $20 per acre Hourly Hourly Hourly
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Special Land Use/Uses 
Subject to Special 

Conditions (other than 
group day care home)

$1,000 $1,000  $1,000 Hourly N/A N/A

Group day care home $100 N/A $100 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Residential $125 N/A $125 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Residential $500 N/A $500 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Regular Meeting N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Special Meeting $1,100 N/A $1,100 N/A N/A N/A

Planned Development 
Stage I and Rezoning

$1,500 + $20 per acre

Preliminary Site Plan Review

Pre‐Application Meeting

$500

$500

$100Administrative

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting

Zoning Board of Appeals Application

Rezoning

Special Land Use/Uses Subject to Special Conditions

Full

Sketch

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

1



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Regular Meeting N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Special Meeting $1,100 N/A $1,100 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire

Full $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 
3rd review.

$500 N/A Hourly Hourly

Sketch $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 
3rd review.

$500 N/A Hourly Hourly

Administrative $100

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 
3rd review.

$500 N/A Hourly Hourly

Planned Development $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 
3rd review.

$500 N/A Hourly Hourly

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
less than two (2) acres: $1,000
two (2) acre to ten (10) acres: $1,500
over ten (10) acres to forty (40) acres: $2,500
over forty (40) acres to 100 acres: $3,500
greater than 100 acres: $3,500 + $30 per acre over 100 acres
less than two (2) acres: $2,000
two (2) acre to ten (10) acres: $2,500
over ten (10) acres to forty (40) acres: $3,500
over forty (40) acres to 100 acres: $5,000
greater than 100 acres: $5,000 + $30 per acre over 100 acres

Planning Commission Meeting

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Review and Inspections

Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control 

Review

Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control 

Inspections
N/A

$100

*Fees cover two (2) detailed engineering reviews. A mandatory meeting will be scheduled to review design specifics after the 2nd 
detailed engineering review (if not approved) before submittal of a 3rd detailed engineering review. Township engineer, Township staff 
representative(s), developer, and project engineer must be in attendance for the mandatory meeting.

Detailed Engineering Review*

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

$100

Hourly

N/A

N/A

Hourly

Hourly

N/A

N/A

Fee Breakdown

2



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,500
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $2,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $2,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $2,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $1,200
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $1,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $1,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Attorney Planner Engineer
Full N/A $2,500  Hourly Hourly Hourly

Sketch N/A $2,500  Hourly Hourly Hourly
Administrative N/A $2,500  Hourly Hourly Hourly

Planned Development N/A $2,500  Hourly Hourly Hourly

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Pre‐Construction Meeting $575 $500  $575 N/A Hourly Hourly

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Earth Balancing and 

Excavation
$300 + $20 per acre $500  $300 + $20 per acre N/A Hourly N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Private Road Review $500  $2,000  $500 Hourly Hourly Hourly

Private Road Inspection N/A $1,000  N/A N/A Hourly N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Future Land Use 
Map/Master Plan 

Amendment
$1,500  $1,500  $1,500 Hourly Hourly (If applicable) N/A

Private Road

Future Land Use Map/Master Plan Amendment

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Pre‐Construction Requirements and Meeting

Earth Balancing and Excavation

Planned Development 
Stage II

$1,000 + $20 per acre

Development Agreement

Full $500

Sketch $500

Administrative $100

Final Site Plan Review

Fee Breakdown

N/A

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

$500

$500

$500

$500

Hourly N/A Hourly

Hourly

Hourly

Hourly

N/AHourly

Hourly

Hourly

N/A

Fee Breakdown

3



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Miscellaneous 

Administrative Review 
$100  $1,000  $100 Hourly Hourly (If applicable) N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Miscellaneous Engineering 

Review 
$100  $1,000  $100 N/A Hourly N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Landscape, Bike 

Path/Sidewalk, Open Space 
Site Inspections

$150 per inspection N/A $150 per inspection N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Miscellaneous Inspection $50 per inspection N/A $50 per inspection N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Residential $50  N/A $50 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Residential $100  N/A $100 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Zoning Permit $50  N/A $50 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire

Sign Permit $25 + $50 per sign face N/A
$25 + $50 per sign 

face
N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Woodlands $100  $1,000  $100 N/A Hourly N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Wetlands $100  $1,000  $100 N/A Hourly N/A

Miscellaneous Inspection

Landscape, Bike Path/Sidewalk, Open Space Site Inspections

Miscellaneous Engineering Review (Structural/Traffic/ect.)

Miscellaneous Administrative Review Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee BreakdownWoodlands

Wetlands

Sign Permit

Zoning Verification Letter

Zoning Permit

4



Fee Breakdown
Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Assessing

Single Address $50 per lot (1 or 2 addresses) N/A
$50 per lot (1 or 2 

addresses)

Residential Development $25 per lot (3 or more addresses) N/A
$25 per lot (3 or 
more addresses)

Re‐Addressing 
Development

$475 + $25 per lot N/A $475 + $25 per lot

Fee Breakdown
Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Assessing

Land Division, 
Combination, and/or 
Boundary Change

$25 per lot N/A $25 per lot

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Collection Box Application 

Fee
$200  N/A $200 N/A N/A N/A

Cash Surety $250  N/A $250 N/A N/A N/A
Annual Permit Renewal 

Fee
$50  N/A $50 N/A N/A N/A

Code Violation Response 
Fee

$75  N/A $75 N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Junk Yard License 
Application Fee

$150  N/A $150 N/A N/A N/A

Junk Yard Annual 
Inspections

$150  N/A $150 N/A N/A N/A

Junk Yard Re‐Inspections $50 per inspection N/A $50 per inspection N/A N/A
$50 per 

inspection

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire

Liquor Annual Inspections $150  N/A $150 N/A N/A N/A

Liquor Re‐Inspections $50 per inspection N/A $50 per inspection N/A N/A
$50 per 

inspection

Fee Breakdown

Fee Breakdown

Fee BreakdownLiquor License Inspection

Addressing

Land Division, Combination, and/or Boundary Change

Collection Box Permit

Junk Yard Permit

5



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire
Smoking Lounge 
Application Fee

$200  N/A $200 N/A N/A N/A

Smoking Lounge Annual 
Inspections

$150  N/A $150 N/A N/A N/A

Smoking Lounge Re‐
Inspections

$50 per inspection N/A $50 per inspection N/A N/A
$50 per 

inspection
Smoking Lounge Zoning 

Compliance
N/A $180  Hourly N/A N/A N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit Township Planner Engineer Fire

Business License Fee $200  N/A
$75 ($25 Admin & 

$50 Building)
$75 N/A $50

Notes:
Fees shall be paid prior to processing applications and/or permits.
Outstanding fees, bills, and deposits shall be paid prior to advancing project in the development review process
Site plan review fees paid are for one (1) review by Township, Planning, Engineering and Fire unless otherwise noted.

Effective Date: 2‐24‐92  Amended:3‐21‐95; 6‐30‐95; 2‐1‐97; 2‐4‐97; 2‐28‐97; 6‐17‐97; 9‐15‐98; 7‐22‐99; 5‐18‐00; 12‐18‐01; 12‐12‐02; 3‐10‐04; 5‐1‐05; 12‐8‐05; 12‐20‐05; 4‐4‐06; 01‐08; 1‐5‐09; 2‐14‐14; 1‐5‐15; 9‐1‐16; 04‐17‐18

Business License Fee Breakdown

6

Smoking Lounge Permit Fee Breakdown



7



8



Stantec Consulting / 2018 Fee Schedule

Title 
Hourly 
Rate Description 

Construction Technician 
CAD Technician 

$80 - $95 

• Junior-level position
• Independently carries out assignments of limited scope using standard procedures,

methods, and techniques
• Assists senior staff in carrying out more advanced procedures
• Completed work is reviewed for feasibility and soundness of judgment
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program or equivalent
• Generally, four years’ work experience

Engineering Assistant 
Engineer-In-Training 
Construction Technician 

$102 - $115 

• Fully qualified professional position
• Carries out assignments requiring general familiarity within a broad field of the

respective profession
• Makes decisions by using a combination of standard methods and techniques
• Actively participates in planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
• Works independently to interpret information and resolve difficulties
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, six years experience

CAD Manager 
Designer 
Process Designer 
Project Engineer 
Senior Project Engineer 
Survey Manager 
Construction Technician 
Senior Civil Engineer 
Environmental Engineer 
Survey Crew Chief 

$121- $137 

• First level supervisor of first complete level of specialization
• Provides applied professional knowledge and initiative in planning and coordinating work

programs
• Adapts established guidelines as necessary to address unusual issues
• Decisions accepted as technically accurate, however may on occasion be reviewed for

soundness of judgment 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, nine years’ experience

Associate 
Senior Associate 
Project Manager 
Field Services Manager 
Landscape Architect $144 - $180 

• Highly-specialized technical professional or supervisor of groups of professionals
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of

expertise
• Participates in short and long range planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
• Makes responsible decisions on all matters, including policy recommendations, work

methods, and financial controls associated with large expenditures
• Reviews and evaluates technical work
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, ten years’ experience with extensive, broad experience

Principal 

$180 - $210 

• Senior level consultant or management function
• Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of

expertise
• Independently conceives programs and problems for investigation
• Participates in discussions to ensure the achievement of program and/or project

objectives
• Makes responsible decisions on expenditures, including large sums or implementation

of major programs and/or projects
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, fifteen years’ experience with extensive professional and management

experience
 Survey Crew $150 

$220 
1 person crew 
2 person crew 

9



2018 

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 

HOURLY COST RECOVERY RATES 

 

 

Township Attorney     $200 

Fire Marshal      $58 

Planning & Development Coordinator  $40 

Clerical Support      $25 

Ordinance Officer     $26 

Building Inspector     $42 

Community Standards Director   $55 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
  Charlotte Wilson, Planning & Development Coordinator 
 

Re: Request to approve Resolution No. 2018-10, Professional Service Fees for 
Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  April 10, 2018 
 
Please accept the enclosed resolution and proposed Professional Services fee schedule for 
planning and development activities for inclusion in the Board of Trustees April 17, 2018 
meeting agenda. 
 
The schedule establishes fees and hourly rates for professional services provided by Office of 
Community Standards and Fire Department staff, the Township Attorney, planning consultant 
Carlisle Wortman Associates, and engineering consultants OHM Advisors and Stantec 
Consulting Services. 
 
The last general revision of the fee schedule was adopted on December 16, 2014.  Since then, 
there have been numerous amendments updating specific fees and adding new fees for 
ordinances and programs implemented over the last three years.  This is a general revision that 
updates the content and format of the entire schedule.  Drafts of proposed changes were 
reviewed by staff, legal counsel and elected leadership, and their input was incorporated into 
the final draft. 
 
The fee schedule has been reorganized and color-coded in an effort to provide clarity for both 
applicants and staff.  Whereas the current schedule is organized alphabetically with no regard 
for the development process, the proposed schedule is organized by chronologic process 
categories, as well as standalone regulatory ordinances.  The left side of each category shows 
refundable and non-refundable fees due from applicants, while the right side breaks down 
internal fee distribution for the benefit of Township staff who process payments.  The 
published version of the schedule available to applicants will only include the left side 
information needed to determine fees. 
 
A noteworthy schedule change is that plan review expenses related to site plan development 
will be paid from a refundable escrow deposit, as opposed to charging a pre-determined lump 
sum fee.  Under the current schedule, lump sum fees collected are not always aligned with 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

actual costs.  Under the proposed schedule, funds will be deposited into an escrow account and 
fees will be charged against the deposit based on hourly rates for professional services.  The 
refundable deposit is determined by a cost formula, and adjustments are made if the balance 
dips too low before completion.  Surplus funds are refunded after completion of site plan 
development.  This revised method offers more transparency to developers and assures 
payment of actual costs to consultants. 
 
The only new fee category not previously approved are Business Registration fees that are tied 
to the Business Registration ordinance currently under consideration. 
 
Thank you for your thoughtful consideration.  Please contact us with questions or concerns so 
that they can be addressed prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: Resolution No. 2018-10 

Professional Services Fee Schedule with 2018 Hourly Rates Exhibits 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-11 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2018-478) 

 
Rezoning of 1250 East Michigan 

 
 

 Whereas, at is regularly scheduled meeting held March 27, 2018, 

the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (Township) Planning Commission 

(Commission) recommended that the Township Board approve a rezoning 

request for a certain parcel of property comprising 1.424 acres, commonly 

identified as 1250 East Michigan Avenue, Parcel ID K-11-10-107-011, from 

the B-3 (General Business) zoning district to the IRO (Industrial, Research, 

Office) zoning district; and  

 Whereas, proposed Ordinance No. 2018-478  rezones 1250 East 

Michigan Avenue, Parcel ID K-11-10-107-011, from B-3 District to IRO 

District zoning classification; and 

 Whereas, the Township Board of Trustees agrees that the rezoning 

is appropriate. 

 Now Therefore, 

 Be it resolved that the Charter  

Township of Ypsilanti hereby adopts and incorporates by reference 

Ordinance No. 2018-478 attached hereto, by reference, in its entirety.  

  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

ORDINANCE 2018-478 
 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 74, 
Township Zoning Ordinance, So As To Rezone 

1250 East Michigan Avenue, being Parcel ID K-11-10-107-011, 
From Its Current B-3 (General Business) District Zoning Classification  

To IRO (Industrial, Research, Office) District Zoning Classification 
 
 

 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that 

Ordinance No. 74, adopted May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 

 Real Property consisting of 1.424 acres of land located at 1250 East 

Michigan Avenue, also known as Parcel ID K-11-10-107-011, and more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

              See attached legal description labeled “Attachment A” 

 

shall be rezoned from its current B-3 (General Business) District zoning 

classification to the IRO (Industrial, Research, Office) District zoning 

classification. 

 The Zoning Map, as incorporated by reference, in the Charter  

Township of Ypsilanti Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by the 

rezoning of the afore-described parcel of property from its B-3 District 

zoning classification to the IRO District zoning classification.  

Severability 

 In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, 

phrases or words of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a 

Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the 

validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, 

phrases or words of this Ordinance unless expressly so determined 

by a Court of competent jurisdiction.    

 

 



Publication 

 This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation as required by law.  

Effective date 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a 

newspaper of general circulation as required by law.   

 

 

 





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Copy: 

Date: 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 

Request to rezone a 1.424 acre parcel from B-3 (General Business) to IRO 
(Industrial Research Office) located at 1250 East Michigan Avenue, parcel 
K-11-10-107-011.

McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 

April 9th, 2018 

Please be advised that the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone 
the 1.424 acre parcel from B-3 (General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research Office) located at 
1250 East Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-10-107-011. The enclosed packet includes the following 
components: 

1. Planning Commission meeting minutes and recommendation 03/27/2018
2. Planning Commission staff report 03/27/2018
3. Rezoning application 03/05/2018
4. Zoning verification letter 11/03/18
5. Article XIII. IRO Industrial Research Office District 04/09/2018

Please be further advised that the Planning Commission made the following recommendation to 
the Township Board: 

Motion by Eldridge – “I move to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees the 
request to rezone the 1.424 acre parcel from B-3 (General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research 
Office) located at 1250 East Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-10-107-011 as the request is consistent 
with the criteria established in the Township zoning ordinance section 2704: Criteria for 
amendments to the zoning map and is consistent with the finding that circumstances have 
significantly changed since 2014, specifically the creation of the American Center for mobility and 
the elimination of the B-4 and other districts.” 

Support: Krieg  Motion Carries - All 

I respectfully request that you place this information packet and recommendation for 
approval on the April 17, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting agenda for its consideration.  
Please contact me with questions or concerns. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE MARCH 27, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

Commissioner Richie called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Commissioners Present:    Commissioners Sally Richie, Stan Eldridge, Laurence Krieg, 

Bill Sinkule and Gloria Peterson  
 
Commissioners Absent:   Chair Jason Iacoangeli and Commissioner Muddasar 

Tawakkul 
 
Others in Attendance: Denny McLain, Township Attorney; Megan Masson-Minock, 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates; Michael Radzik, Office of 
Community Standards Director  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE TUESDAY, MARCH 13, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg supported by Commissioner 
Peterson to approve the minutes of the March 13, 2018 Regular Meeting. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

   
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 

A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN – KALITTA AIR, BRAKE AND TIRE ADDITION – 
10990 BLACKMORE AVENUE – TO CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN FOR A 12,000 SQUARE FOOT ADDITION TO AN EXISTING 12,000 
SQUARE FOOT BUILDING LOCATED AT 10990 BLACKMORE AVENUE, 
PARCEL K-11-25-100-028.  

 
Megan Masson-Minock, Carlisle Wortman Associates, said the addition is proposed to 
be located on a paved area of the existing site within a fenced area.  The existing 
storage shed in this area would be moved to a grassy area adjacent to the northwest 
corner of the existing parking lot.  The property is zoned I-2, general industrial and the 
building operates as a warehouse and repair facility.  The parcel is 4.25 acres and the 
surrounding parcels are zoned I-2.  Ms. Masson-Minock stated planning consultants 
reviewed the preliminary site plan and recommended approval.  OHM, engineers 
recommended approval in a March 15, 2018 review letter with a few comments that can 
be resolved during detailed engineering.  Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 
approved the plans in a letter dated March 7, 2018 with comments that can be 
addressed during detailed engineering.  Ypsilanti Township Fire Department approved 
conditionally with comments and requirements in a letter dated March 14, 2018.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated per the Master Plan this use is consistent and the proposed 
building would be located on an existing paved area.  She said the building would 
comply with all area height, bulk, density and area and everything in the zoning 
ordinance.  The two (2) existing access points off of Blackmore Avenue would remain 
and the Fire Marshall commented in regards to fire access.  Parking complies with the 
zoning ordinance with twenty-two (22) spaces and one (1) barrier-free space.  Ms. 
Masson-Minock stated the applicant proposed adding ten (10) LED lights in the addition 
which complies with the zoning ordinance.  The applicant proposed adding six (6) five 
(5) foot tall Colorado blue spruce trees to screen the storage yard from Blackmore 
Avenue and an eight (8) foot wide strip of river rock surrounding the building as an 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2018 
Page 2 
 
infiltration trench for roof drainage.  Ms. Masson-Minock said that in Carlisle Wortman’s 
letter to the applicant they said the river rock needed to be replaced with appropriate 
landscape material.  The applicant proposed to maintain the existing six (6) foot tall 
barbed-wire on chain-link fence.  Ms. Masson-Minock stated barbed-wire is prohibited 
except where for the purpose of protecting public safety, the Planning Commission can 
approve.  Ms. Masson-Minock said the applicant brought a colored version of the 
building elevations to the meeting since one was missing from the packet.  The primary 
building materials would match the existing building materials and it meets the zoning 
requirements.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated Carlisle Wortman’s recommendations are for the 
Commission to make a decision about the barbed-wire fence and based on that 
decision they recommend the preliminary site plan be approved conditionally on 
receiving colored building elevations and that the following items be resubmitted as part 
of the final site plan approval: show stripped barrier-free parking space, replace river 
rock with appropriate landscaping, provide fixture cut sheets for lighting, clarify trash 
storage and pick up and if an exterior dumpster is proposed it needs to be screened 
behind a wall and either removing or allowing the barbed-wire on chain-linked fence.   
 
Michael Pole, general contractor for B&B General Contracting provided the colored 
elevation to the Planning Commission.  He stated the color sample provided is part of 
the pre-engineered steel building in medium gray.  The color is similar to the storage 
building that is being relocated and the existing building’s siding will be color-matched to 
the gray.   
 
Commissioner Krieg requested clarification on the floor plan sheet A2.01 and the room 
labeled Blast Room.   
 
Christopher Barz, Kalitta Air stated the Blast Room is where paint finish is removed for 
the wheel assemblies of aircraft.    
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to recommend preliminary site plan approval for construction of a 12,000 
square foot addition to an existing 12,000 square foot building located at 10990 
Blackmore Avenue, Parcel K-11-25-100-028 with the following conditions:  
 

The applicant must obtain all necessary permits from the Office of 
Community Standards. 

 
 Show the striped barrier-free parking space  
 
 Replace river rock with appropriate landscaping  
 
 Provide fixture cut sheets  
 

Clarify trash storage and pick up and if an exterior dumpster is proposed 
the dumpster shall be screen with a masonry wall that will match the 
building 
 
Continued use of barbed-wire fence as-is.   

 
At this point Mr. Barz stated they would remove the barbed-wire fence and screen the 
dumpster in front of the building but would like to keep the river rock as it is uniform with 
the rest of their buildings.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said there is nothing in the zoning ordinance that says a building 
has to be landscaped in that way.  She said it does not create a problem with 
precedence.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner Sinkule made the following 
changes to the above conditions:  
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2018 
Page 3 
 

Leave river rock as in currently in place 
 
Remove barbed-wire on chain-linked fence  

 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Richie: Yes     Krieg: Yes     Eldridge: Yes     Sinkule: Yes     Peterson: Yes      
 

B. REZONING – B-3 TO IRO – 1250 EAST MICHIGAN AVENUE – TO CONSIDER 
RECOMMENDING TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO REZONE 
THE 1.424 ACRE PARCEL FROM B-3 (GENERAL BUSINESS) TO IRO 
(INDUSTRIAL RESEARCH OFFICE) LOCATED AT 1250 EAST MICHIGAN 
AVENUE, PARCEL K-11-10-107-011.  

 
Ms. Megan-Minock stated the Master Plan designates the site for Urban Commercial 
Corridor which generally corresponds to P-1, RM-4, B-4, B-5 and B-6.  She said B-4 
through B-6 are not zoning options anymore and were removed beginning March 1, 
2018.  The parcel is currently a vacant commercial building and was previously an 
automotive parts shop.  The proposed use is for professional engineering offices that 
validate electronic components such as airbag sensors.  Ms. Masson-Minock stressed 
to the Commission that the decision would impact all other businesses zoned IRO.  She 
said the surrounding parcels were zoned B-3 and multi-family residential.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated section 2704 in the zoning ordinance provides the criteria for 
the amendment of the zoning map and discussed the criteria.  She said the request for 
rezoning is not consistent with the future land use map.  The site is already developed 
and does not pose a risk to the environment.  The applicant has a very specific 
business and identified the building as one they could reuse immediately.  Ms. Masson-
Minock said Carlisle Wortman does not believe surrounding businesses would be 
negatively impacted by rezoning as all business would be conducted inside the building.  
 
Ms. Masson-Minock read the intent of the IRO district and asked the Commission to 
keep it in mind when making their decision.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said Carlisle Wortman believed the utilities and streets were 
sufficient for the proposed business.  She said the American Center for Mobility has 
increased the demand for supporting industries in the area and research facilities of the 
size that the applicant needs are limited.  The building is 6, 871 square feet with an 
elevated loading dock and is suited for automotive research.  She said most of the 
vacant buildings in the industrial district were set up for large scale manufacturing work 
and were 100,000 square feet or more.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said the property meets the dimensional regulations for IRO with 
the exception of a twenty (20) foot side yard setback.  She said no variance would be 
needed because it is an existing building built in a conforming way even if the zoning 
changes.   
 
Denny McLain, Township Attorney confirmed that no variance would be needed.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said that IRO would be the most appropriate zoning district if this 
parcel were to be rezoned and with changing circumstances and the Township’s future 
vision it makes the most sense.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated Carlisle Wortman’s recommendation is that the Commission 
make a finding that circumstances have changed and the Urban Commercial Corridor is 
outdated as well as recommend approval to the Township Board.  She said there were 
two (2) suggested motions: to approve or deny.   
 
The applicant stated his current office is in Plymouth, Michigan and he would like his 
office to be in Ypsilanti because he also lives here.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked Mr. McLain if it would be a spot zoning.   



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
Mr. McLain said that based on research he believed the Township could defend any 
challenge that it was being spot zoned.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked what could happen if the Planning Commission approved 
this request but then rejected the next applicant requesting re-zoning to IRO.   
 
Mr. McLain replied that every case rested on its own basis.   
 
Commissioner Krieg stated he was okay with the change and creating a zone for the 
American Center for Mobility.  He believed it important to look at the context and be 
clear why the Commission made the decision.  He brought up two (2) issues, the first 
regarding the type of activity that would take place inside the building.  Commissioner 
Krieg said the applicant believed his business would not be allowed in a commercial 
zoned building.  He asked the difference between testing sensors and other computer 
use and why it would not fit.   
 
The applicant said he believed IRO better reflected the nature of their business and 
would allow continuous growth of activities.  He said IRO specifically mentioned testing 
and lab and that is what his company does.  He stated he wants to follow the zoning 
code and believed that the company would if zoned IRO and wanted to avoid future 
misinterpretation.  The applicant said that the activities include engineering and 
physical, mechanical, environmental and electrical testing.  He said it would be difficult 
to forecast what the testing would look like in five (5) years but believed IRO would 
cover what they did.   
 
Commissioner Krieg said his other issue is the time-frame for rezoning the East 
Michigan/Ecorse areas and what the impact would be on this particular case.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock replied currently the Township is going through a corridor planning 
process that needs to be complete by end of May 2018 and put in place summer 2018.  
Zoning changes would occur afterwards and with the Master Plan update in 2019 she 
said the process could begin this year.  She stated the applicant’s business would fit 
based on what has been discussed and if it succeeds it could act as a pilot project for 
future zoning applications.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked what the Plymouth property is zoned.   
 
The applicant stated he does not know.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked if the fire code would change in the rezoned building in 
the Township based on what the applicant would be doing.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock stated she did not believe so but it would be up to the Fire 
Department.  In order to occupy the building the applicant would need to file a change of 
use and at that time the Fire Department would assess.   
 
The applicant clarified the types of testing and stated environmental testing referred to 
the use of a refrigerator where the part would be cooled down and an oven to heat it up.  
He stated the appliances were the same types found in any residential kitchen.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge asked why there was no report from Carlisle Wortman.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock replied that there has not been a rezoning request since Charlotte 
Wilson was hired at the Township.  She said Ms. Wilson did send a letter to her for 
review but due to their schedules there was not enough time to compile a report.   
 
Michael Radzik, OCS Director addressed the building code issues.  He stated at the 
time a change of use application was filed the Building Department’s inspectors would 
tour the building.  Any changes or violations would be required to be completed prior to 
occupancy.   
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2018 
Page 5 
 
Commissioner Sinkule asked the applicant how long his company has been in 
Plymouth.  
 
The applicant replied since 2005.   
 
Commissioner Sinkule asked how the business has fared.   
 
The applicant replied very well but he wants to be near the American Center for 
Mobility.  
 
Commissioner Sinkule asked the applicant if he leased the building in Plymouth. 
 
The applicant confirmed.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge to recommend approval to the 
Township Board of Trustees the request to rezone the 1.424 acre parcel from B-3 
(General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research Office) located at 1250 East 
Michigan Avenue, Parcel K-11-10-107-011 as the request is consistent with the 
criteria established in the Township zoning ordinance section 2704: Criteria for 
Amendments to the Zoning Map; and is also consistent with the changing Master 
Plan.   
 
Ms. Masson-Minock suggested an amendment: Criteria for Amendments to the 
Zoning Map and is consistent with the finding that circumstances have 
significantly changed since 2014, specifically the opening of the American Center 
for Mobility and the proposed changes in zoning districts.   
 
Commissioner Eldridge repeated the amendment and added: and the elimination 
of the B-4 and other districts.   
 
Commissioner Krieg supported as amended.   
 
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
6. OLD BUSINESS  
 
None  
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
None  
 
7. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
Ms. Masson-Minock said the Commissioners have the latest publication from Michigan 
Association of Planning on their desks.   
 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
None 
 

C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 
 
None  
 
8. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
There was no report. 

 
9. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REFPRESENTATIVE REPORT 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 
There was no report.   
 
10. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
There was no attorney report. 
 
11. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Radzik updated current projects.  He said Restaurant Depot is having a pre-
construction meeting on Tuesday April 3, 2017 and may have begun site clearing.   
 
Fairfield Inn is close to receiving their Certificate of Occupancy and should open spring 
2018.   
 
Hampton Inn is in the second round of preliminary site plan review.  It will be across the 
street from Fairfield Inn.   
 
Mr. Radzik said he is expecting another preliminary site plan for a third hotel at 800 
South Hewitt Road in the upcoming weeks.   
 
Mr. Radzik said the Township has had numerous inquiries on vacant land for single-
family and multi-family construction.   
 
12. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
There was no other business. 

 
A motion was made by a Commissioner Peterson, supported by Commissioner 
Krieg to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Laura Gough 
OCS Clerk  
 
Recommended for approval as edited  
Laurence Krieg, Secretary 
Planning Commission 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 
 
 

Staff Report 
Petition to Rezone Real Property 

1250 East Michigan Avenue 
March 27, 2018 

 
CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 

A petition has been filed with the Office of Community Standards requesting to consider 
recommending to the Township Board of Trustees to rezone the 1.424 acre parcel from B-3 
(General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research Office) located at 1250 East Michigan Avenue, 
parcel K-11-10-107-011. 
 
APPLICANT 

Carlos Gutierrez Martinez 
775 Davis Street, Suite #4  
Plymouth, MI 48170 
 
CROSS REFERENCES 

Zoning Ordinance citations: 
• Article XXVII; Section 2701 – Changes and Amendments 
• Article XIII; Section 1300 – IRO Industrial, Research and Office District 
 
SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The Comprehensive Plan designates this site for Urban Commercial Corridor which corresponds 
to the following zoning districts: P-1, RM-5, B-4, B-5, and B-6. The subject property is currently 
zoned B-3, general business.  The parcel is currently a vacant commercial building, previously an 
automotive parts shop. 
 
The proposed use is for professional engineering offices validating electrical components (airbag 
sensors, radios, ect.). Equipment for testing is used in an office environment, generally within 
cubicles. 
 
On November 3rd, 2017, a zoning verification letter was written stating that the proposed use is 
permitted if the principal use remained office space for the engineering firm. The applicant was 
concerned that their business would be primarily data collection of automotive parts with office 
space as an accessory use. 
 

  



1250 East Michigan Avenue Rezoning  
March 27th, 2018 
 
Aerial – 1250 East Michigan Avenue 

 
  

Google Maps – 1250 East Michigan Avenue 

 
 

 



1250 East Michigan Avenue Rezoning  
March 27th, 2018 
 
ADJACENT USES, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Direction Use Zoning Master Plan 
North Commercial B-3 Urban Commercial Corridor 
South Railroad / Multiple-Family Residential N/A / RM-2 N/A / MFR-2 
East Commercial B-3 Urban Commercial 

Corridor 
West Commercial B-3 Urban Commercial 

Corridor 
 
ANALYSIS 

Section 2704 of the Zoning Ordinance provides criteria for amendment of the zoning map. This 
review is based on those rezoning criteria and the most recent Master Plan update. 
 
a. Consistency with the goals, policies and future land use map of the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti Master Plan, including any sub-area or corridor plans. If conditions have changed 
since the master plan was adopted, the rezoning may be found to be consistent with recent 
development trends in the area. 

 
• The requested rezoning is not consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the 

Township Master Plan which recommends “Urban Commercial Corridor” uses for the 
subject properties. However, the zoning districts which correspond with Urban 
Commercial Corridor (B-4, B-5, B-6) were removed from the zoning ordinance in 
March 2018. Conditions have changed since the Master Plan was updated in 2014. The 
American Center for Mobility is changing the economic landscape of the Township, 
attracting supporting research businesses that are vital for its success. This rezoning 
request is consistent with the goals stated in the Plan. 
 

• With a grant from the University of Michigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates is 
undergoing a corridor study of East Michigan Avenue (along with Ecorse Road). While 
this is in the public discussion phases, there has been general agreement and no direct 
opposition to date.  
 

• Excerpt from 2014 Master Plan Update: Urban Commercial Corridor: Michigan 
Avenue. This corridor is the primary eastern gateway into and out of the City of 
Ypsilanti. This corridor contains more intense commercial activity and uses, but is 
developed in a typical suburban style with large setbacks and lot areas. Adjacent uses 
are more intense than Ecorse, including larger industrial development (especially 
toward the east), in addition to single-family and multi-family housing. There has been 
more recent development along this corridor, so by leveraging this development into a 
unified corridor typology, the Township can increase density, activity and promote the 
area as a major gateway. 

 
b. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 

with all uses permitted in the proposed zoning district compared to uses permitted under 
current zoning. 
 



1250 East Michigan Avenue Rezoning  
March 27th, 2018 
 

• There is no evidence indicating that the site contains any environmental features that 
would restrict development under either the current or proposed zoning designations. 

 
c. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing 

the property with at least one of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 
 

• The current facility located in Plymouth is looking for a more suitable location for their 
business. The applicant will likely receive a reasonable return on investment with a 
commercial use but this is not central to the business. The principal research aspects of 
the proposed use would not be allowed without the requested zoning amendment.   
 

d. The compatibility of all uses permitted in the proposed zoning district with surrounding uses 
and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values compared 
to uses permitted under current zoning. 
 

• As the proposed IRO zoning designation prohibits the outdoor storage of goods or 
materials, the impact to any neighboring property will be limited.  The properties to the 
east, west, and north are commercial properties and would not be affected by the 
rezoning. The property immediately to the south is railroad, followed by multiple 
family residential. All IRO use activity must be within an enclosed building and the 
uses would have minimal impact on surrounding properties. 
 

e. The capacity of township utilities and services are sufficient to accommodate all the uses 
permitted in the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the 
township. 
 

• Public water and sewer and other necessary utilities are available in this area to serve 
the site.  
 

f. The capacity of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. A traffic impact study in 
accordance with the requirements of the township traffic impact study ordinance shall be 
provided if the proposed rezoning district permits uses that could generate 100 or more 
directional trips during the peak hour, or at least 1,000 more trips per day than the majority 
of the uses that could be developed under the current zoning, as determined by the community 
and economic development department. 
 

• A traffic impact study was not required for this proposal due to a negligible change in 
traffic which is far less than the 100 peak hour trips noted by the ordinance to require 
a traffic impact study. 

 
g. The apparent demand for the types of uses permitted in the requested zoning district in the 

township, and surrounding area, in relation to the amount of land in the township, and 
surrounding area, currently zoned and available to accommodate the demand. 
 



1250 East Michigan Avenue Rezoning  
March 27th, 2018 
 

• The American Center for Mobility is increasing demand for supporting industries in 
the surrounding area. Existing facilities of this size for office research operations are 
limited. The existing 6,871 square foot building with an elevated loading dock is suited 
for re-use to an automotive research use. Most vacant buildings in the industrial zoning 
districts are set up for larger scale manufacturing work.  An automotive research site 
of the nature proposed does not need 100,000 square feet or more of space. 
 

•  The B-3 zoning designation also would not permit the existing use by a matter of right 
or special land use.  The proposed rezoning would resolve this issue. 

 
h. The boundaries of the requested zoning district are sufficient to meet the dimensional 

regulations for the zoning district listed in Article XX Schedule of Regulations. 
 

• The property meets the dimensional requirements as noted within the schedule of 
regulations, except for the west side setback. IRO requires a setback of 20 feet. The 
current facility has a west side setback of 10 feet. 

 
i. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district shall be more appropriate from the 

township's perspective than another zoning district. 
 

•  The proposed IRO zoning is more appropriate than other zoning districts which would 
allow the same use, such as I-1.  The intent of the IRO district is to be the least intense 
of industrial zoning districts. No outdoor storage is permitted and all activities must 
remain within enclosed buildings. The IRO zoning district ensures the compatibility 
between the operations and activities of businesses and character of the neighborhood 
in which the center is located 

 
j.  The requested rezoning will not create an isolated and unplanned spot zone. 
 

• The requested IRO zoning on this site would be consistent with surrounding land uses. 
The land uses permitted in IRO are harmonious with B-3 uses and Master Plan 
description of the Urban Commercial Corridor.  

 
k.  The request has not previously been submitted within the past one year, unless conditions have 

changed or new information has been provided. 
 

• A rezoning request has not been considered on this site within the past year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

The recent changes to the zoning ordinance and economic landscape of the Township deem the 
Urban Commercial Corridor future land use category as outdated. After reviewing the uses 
permitted by right and special use in IRO and B-3, the uses in IRO ensure the compatibility 
between the operations and activities of businesses and character of the neighborhood in which the 
center is located.  The intent of the B-3 general business district is designed to provide sites for 
more diversified business types which would often be incompatible with the pedestrian movement 
in the local business district or the community business district.  



1250 East Michigan Avenue Rezoning  
March 27th, 2018 
 
 
This request requires the Planning Commission to make a recommendation to the Township Board. 
Therefore, it is the recommendation of staff that the Planning Commission approve a motion to 
recommend approval to the Township Board.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suggested Motions: The following suggested motions are intended to assist the Commission in 
making the desired motion of their choice.  The Commission may utilize, add or reject any motion 
and/or conditions suggested herein as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to approve: 
 
“I move to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees the request to rezone the 1.424 
acre parcel from B-3 (General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research Office) located at 1250 East 
Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-10-107-011 as the request is consistent with the criteria established 
in the Township Zoning Ordinance Section 2704, criteria for amendments to the zoning map.” 
 
Motion to deny: 
 
“I move to recommend denial to the Township Board of Trustees the request to rezone the 1.424 
acre parcel from B-3 (General Business) to IRO (Industrial Research Office) located at 1250 East 
Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-10-107-011 as the request is inconsistent with the criteria 
established in the Township Zoning Ordinance Section 2704, criteria for amendments to the zoning 
map: 
 

1. _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. _____________________________________________________________________” 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Charlotte Wilson 
Charlotte Wilson 
Planning and Development Coordinator 





























7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 

TO: James F. Berkemeier and Carlos Gutierrez 

FROM: Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 

DATE: November 3, 2017 

SUBJECT: 1250 East Michigan Avenue 

The property at 1250 East Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-10-107-011, is zoned B-3, General 
Business.  

The proposed use is for professional engineering offices validating electrical components (airbag 
sensors, radios, ect.). Equipment for testing is used in an office environment, generally within 
cubicles. Offices for professional occupations are a principal permitted use of B-3 in Section 801.1 
of the zoning ordinance.  

Sincerely, 

Charlotte Wilson 
Charlotte Wilson 
Planning and Development Coordinator 



�������� �	
�����������������
��	����
��������������������� �!�����"�


���

#$%$&$'$($)$*$+$,$#-$##$#%$
#$ .$/$0$1$2$3$%$ .$/$0$1$ 4#54%5

6789:;<�=999$�>�97?�9@ABC8796;�7<C<67:D�?EE9:<�A9C879:8�C20$�#&--$�>�9FG2FGH8I2�97?�JF1KLGMJ.N�M2L2.M0I�OP02�1JLGMJ0GL�JL�LO�12LJQF21�.L�GO�RMOSJ12�3OM�.�T0OUUKFJGV�O3�OP02W�M2L2.M0I�.F1�JF1KLGMJ.N�3.0JNJGJ2L$T�8I2�97?�JF1KLGMJ.N�M2L2.M0I�OP021JLGMJ0GL�.M2�12LJQF21�GO�2FLKM2�GI2�0OUR.GJ/JNJGV�/2GX22F�GI2�OR2M.GJOFL�GI2M2JF�.F1�GI2�.0GJSJGJ2L�.F1�0I.M.0G2M�O3�GI2�F2JQI/OMIOO1�JF�XIJ0I�GI2�02FG2M�JL�NO0.G21$�8I21JLGMJ0G�JL�2LG./NJLI21�GO�2F0OKM.Q2�KL2L�XIJ0I�I.S2�.�IJQI�S.NK2�R2M�.0M2�O3�N.F1�GI.G�XJNN�LKRRN2U2FG�GI2�GOXFLIJRYL�G.Z�/.L2$C20$�#&-#$�>�[MJF0JR.N�KL2L�R2MUJGG21H9F�.F�97?�JF1KLGMJ.N�M2L2.M0I�OP02�1JLGMJ0GW�FO�/KJN1JFQ�OM�N.F1�LI.NN�/2�KL21�.F1�FO�/KJN1JFQ�LI.NN�/2�2M20G21�2Z02RG�3OM�OF2�OM�UOM2�O3�GI2�3ONNOXJFQ�LR20J\21�KL2LKFN2LL�OGI2MXJL2�RMOSJ121�JF�GIJL�OM1JF.F02H6FV�KL2�0I.MQ21�XJGI�GI2�RMJF0JR.N�3KF0GJOF�O3�/.LJ0�M2L2.M0IW�12LJQF�.F1�RJNOG�OM�2ZR2MJU2FG.N�RMO1K0G�12S2NORU2FG$?P02�/KJN1JFQL�3OM�.FV�O3�GI2�3ONNOXJFQ�O00KR.GJOFLH�2Z20KGJS2W�.1UJFJLGM.GJS2W�RMO32LLJOF.NW�.00OKFGJFQW�XMJGJFQW�0N2MJ0.NW�LG2FOQM.RIJ0W�1M.3GJFQ�.F1L.N2L$A.G.�RMO02LLJFQ�.F1�0OURKG2M�02FG2MLW�JF0NK1JFQ�L2MSJ02�.F1�U.JFG2F.F02�O3�2N20GMOFJ0�1.G.�RMO02LLJFQ�2]KJRU2FG$.̂F_LW�0M21JG�KFJOFLW�L.SJFQL�.F1�NO.F�.LLO0J.GJOFL$DOLRJG.NLW�0NJFJ0L�.F1�U21J0.N�OP02L̀�U21J0.N�N./OM.GOMJ2L$aOG2NL�OM�IOG2NL$6LL2U/NV�I.NNLW�1JLRN.V�I.NNLW�0OFS2FGJOF�02FG2M�OM�LJUJN.M�RN.02L�O3�.LL2U/NV�XI2F�0OF1K0G21�0OURN2G2NV�XJGIJF�2F0NOL21�/KJN1JFQL$[OLG�OP02L$CG.G2>NJ02FL21�M2LJ12FGJ.N�0IJN1�.F1�.1KNG�0.M2�3.0JNJGJ2L�.L�RMOSJ121�3OM�JF�L20GJOF�%#%%$?GI2M�KL2L�LJUJN.M�GO�GI2�./OS2�KL2L$aKFJ0JR.N�/KJN1JFQL�.F1�KL2L$6002LLOMV�LGMK0GKM2L�.F1�KL2L�0KLGOU.MJNV�JF0J12FG�GO�GI2�./OS2�R2MUJGG21�KL2L$4?M1$�@O$�,,>%-(W�&>#)>,,5C20$�#&-%$�>�BL2L�R2MUJGG21�LK/b20G�GO�LR20J.N�0OF1JGJOFLH8I2�3ONNOXJFQ�KL2L�U.V�/2�R2MUJGG21�KROF�GI2�QM.FGJFQ�O3�.�R2MUJG�3OM�LK0I�KL2�/V�GI2�RN.FFJFQ�0OUUJLLJOF�LK/b20G�GO�GI2�0OF1JGJOFL�I2M2JF.3G2M�JUROL21�3OM�2.0IKL2W�.F1�LK/b20G�3KMGI2M�GO�LK0I�OGI2M�0OF1JGJOFL�XIJ0IW�JF�GI2�ORJFJOF�O3�GI2�0OUUJLLJOFW�.M2�F202LL.MV�GO�RMOSJ12�.12]K.G2�RMOG20GJOF�GO�GI2�F2JQI/OMIOO1�.F1�GO./KGGJFQ�RMOR2MGJ2L�.F1�LK/b20G�3KMGI2M�GO�.�RK/NJ0�I2.MJFQ�I2N1�JF�.00OM1�XJGI�L20$�%&-,�.F1�3KMGI2M�LI.NN�/2�M2SJ2X21�.L�RMOSJ121�JF�L20$�%##,H6FV�O3�GI2�3ONNOXJFQ�JF1KLGMJ.N�KL2L�XI2F�0OF1K0G21�XIONNV�XJGIJF�.�0OURN2G2NV�2F0NOL21�/KJN1JFQH8I2�U.FK3.0GKM2W�0OUROKF1JFQW�RMO02LLJFQW�R.0_.QJFQ�OM�GM2.GU2FG�O3�LK0I�RMO1K0GL�.LH�/._2MV�QOO1LW�0.F1VW�0OLU2GJ0LW�RI.MU.02KGJ0.NLWGOJN2GMJ2LW�3OO1�RMO1K0GLW�I.M1X.M2�.F1�0KGN2MV̀�GOONW�1J2W�Q.KQ2�.F1�U.0IJF2�LIORL$8I2�U.FK3.0GKM2W�0OUROKF1JFQW�.LL2U/NJFQ�OM�GM2.GU2FG�O3�.MGJ0N2L�OM�U2M0I.F1JL2�3MOU�GI2�3ONNOXJFQ�RM2SJOKLNV�RM2R.M21�U.G2MJ.NLH�/OF2W0.FS.LW�02NNORI.F2W�0NOGIW�0OM_W�32.GI2MLW�32NGW�\/2MW�3KMW�QN.LLW�I.JMW�IOMFW�N2.GI2MW�R.R2MW�RN.LGJ0LW�RM20JOKL�OM�L2UJRM20JOKL�U2G.NL�OM�LGOF2LWLI22GU2G.N�42Z0NK1JFQ�N.MQ2�LG.URJFQ�LK0I�.LH�.KGOUO/JN2�32F12ML�OM�/O1J2L5W�LI2NNW�G2ZGJN2LW�GO/.00OW�X.ZW�XJM2W�XOO1�42Z0NK1JFQ�L.X�.F1�RN.FJFQUJNNL5�.F1�V.MFL$8I2�U.FK3.0GKM2�O3�ROGG2MV�.F1�\QKMJF2L�OM�OGI2M�LJUJN.M�02M.UJ0�RMO1K0GL�KLJFQ�OFNV�RM2SJOKLNV�RKNS2MJc21�0N.VW�.F1�_JNFL�\M21�OFNV�/V�2N20GMJ0JGVOM�Q.L$a.FK3.0GKM2�O3�UKLJ0.N�JFLGMKU2FGLW�GOVLW�FOS2NGJ2L�.F1�U2G.N�OM�MK//2M�LG.URLW�OM�OGI2M�LU.NN�UON121�MK//2M�RMO1K0GL$a.FK3.0GKM2�OM�.LL2U/NV�O3�2N20GMJ0.N�.RRNJ.F02LW�2N20GMOFJ0�JFLGMKU2FGL�.F1�12SJ02LW�M.1JOL�.F1�RIOFOQM.RIL$;./OM.GOMJ2LW�2ZR2MJU2FG.NW�\NU�OM�G2LGJFQ$72G.JN�.F1�L2MSJ02�KL2L�U.V�/2�R2MUJGG21�JF�/KJN1JFQL�XIJ0I�2Z0221�OF2�LGOMV�JF�I2JQIG�.L�L20OF1.MV�KL2L�GO�GI2�RMJF0JR.N�R2MUJGG21�OP02�KL2LJF0NK121�JF�R.M.QM.RIL�#�GIMOKQI�(�O3�L20$�#&-#�./OS2H72G.JN�/KLJF2LL2L�OM�L2MSJ02�2LG./NJLIU2FGL$[2MLOF.N�L2MSJ02�2LG./NJLIU2FGLW�LK0I�.L�/KG�FOG�NJUJG21�GOH�M2R.JM�LIORL�4X.G0I2LW�M.1JOW�G2N2SJLJOFW�LIO2W�2G0$5W�G.JNOM�LIORLW�/2.KGV�R.MNOML�OM/.M/2MLIORLW�N.KF1MJ2L�OM�1MV�0N2.F2MLW�RMJFGJFQ�OM�RIOGOQM.RIJ0�M2RMO1K0GJOFW�RIOGOQM.RIJ0W�.MG�OM�JFG2MJOM�120OM.GJFQ�LGK1JOL$8I2.G2MLW�/OXNJFQ�.NN2VLW�/JNNJ.M1�I.NNLW�I2.NGI�L.NOFL�OM�LJUJN.M�3OMUL�O3�JF1OOM�M20M2.GJOF$72LG.KM.FGL�OM�OGI2M�RN.02L�L2MSJFQ�3OO1�.F1�/2S2M.Q2LW�/KG�FOG�JF0NK1JFQ�1MJS2>JFW�3.LG>3OO1W�0.MMV>OKG�OM�1MJS2>GIMOKQI�M2LG.KM.FGL�.F1�LK/b20G3KMGI2M�GO�GI2�3ONNOXJFQ�0OF1JGJOFLHCK0I�KL2L�LI.NN�/2�NO0.G21�XJGIJF�.F�OP02�LGMK0GKM2�OM�UOG2N�/KJN1JFQ�OM�LI.NN�/2�NO0.G21�JF�.�3M22LG.F1JFQ�/KJN1JFQ�XJGIJF�GI2�97?�1JLGMJ0G�LO.L�GO�/2�.1b.02FG�GO�.�KL2�12LJQF.G21�.L�/2JFQ�.NNOX21�JF�L20$�#&-#W�R.M.QM.RIL�%W�&W�'W�(W�)W�OM�*$CK0I�KL2�LI.NN�/2�RN.FF21�.L�.�R.MG�O3�.F�OS2M.NN�RN.F�3OM�12S2NORU2FG�O3�FOG�N2LL�GI.F�&-�.0M2L�.F1�LI.NN�/2�R.MG�O3�.�L2MSJ02�2LG./NJLIU2FG0OURN2Z�3OM�LK0I�12S2NORU2FG$



�������� �	
�����������������
��	����
��������������������� �!�����"�


���

#$%#&%'()($(&( *(+(,(-(.(/(0(1(

23,4�35.5�54*66�,789:;5.�<7=�87:.�=4*<�)>�9.:,.<=�7?�=4.�6*<-�*:.*�7?�*<�7@.:*66�-.@.6798.<=(A4.�67,*=;7<�7?�53,4�35.5�54*66�+.�.5=*+6;54.-�*=�=4.�=;8.�7?�5;=.�96*<�:.@;.B�*<-�*99:7@*6�?7:�=4.�=7=*6�-.@.6798.<=�,7896.C(2.,(�'$>$(�D�E.F3;:.-�,7<-;=;7<5GA4.�73=-77:�5=7:*H.�7?�H77-5�7:�8*=.:;*65�54*66�+.�9:74;+;=.-(I<J�35.�.5=*+6;54.-�;<�=4.�KEL�-;5=:;,=�54*66�+.�79.:*=.-�57�*5�=7�,7896J�B;=4�=4.�9.:?7:8*<,.�5=*<-*:-5�5.=�?7:=4�4.:.;<*?=.:�;<�5.,(�)')>(I66�35.5�54*66�:.,.;@.�5;=.�96*<�:.@;.B�*<-�*99:7@*6�+J�=4.�96*<<;<H�,788;55;7<�9:;7:�=7�=4.�;553*<,.�7?�*<J�+3;6-;<H�9.:8;=(LMD5=:..=�67*-;<H�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-�;<�*,,7:-*<,.�B;=4�=4.�?7667B;<H�5,4.-36.GN7:�7O,.�+3;6-;<H5�7?�6.55�=4*<�'>>P>>>�5F3*:.�?..=�;<�H:755�Q77:�*:.*P�*=�6.*5=�7<.�67*-;<H�59*,.P�5.9*:*=.�?:78�7MD5=:..=�9*:R;<HP�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-;<�=4.�:.*:�7:�5;-.�J*:-�7<6J(N7:�7O,.�+3;6-;<H5�7?�'>>P>>>�5F3*:.�?..=�;<�H:755�Q77:�*:.*�7:�87:.P�*=�6.*5=�7<.�67*-;<H�59*,.�B;=4�*�-;8.<5;7<�7?�*=�6.*5=�=.<�+J�/>�?..=�7:�/>>5F3*:.�?..=�;<�*:.*P�B;=4�,6.*:*<,.�7?�*=�6.*5=�'&�?..=�;<�4.;H4=P�;<�=4.�:.*:�7:�5;-.�J*:-�7<6J(N7:�9:;<,;9*6�35.5�9.:8;==.-�53+S.,=�=7�59.,;*6�,7<-;=;7<5P�7<.�5.9*:*=.�59*,.P�;<�*--;=;7<�=7�59*,.5�:.F3;:.-�?7:�7O,.5P�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-�?7:�.*,45.:@;,.�.<=:*<,.�=7�=4.�5.,7<-*:J�35.5�;<�=4.�:.*:�7:�5;-.�J*:-�7<6J(N7:�;<-35=:;*6�+3;6-;<H5P�7MD5=:..=�67*-;<H�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-�;<�*,,7:-*<,.�B;=4�5.,(�)'>0(I66�67*-;<H�*<-�3<67*-;<H�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-�7M�5=:..=�;<�=4.�:.*:�J*:-�7:�;<�*<�;<=.:;7:�5;-.�J*:-P�*<-�;<�<7�;<5=*<,.�54*66�+.�9.:8;==.-�;<�*�?:7<=�J*:-(I66�67*-;<H�*<-�3<67*-;<H�*:.*5�54*66�+.�5,:..<.-�?:78�93+6;,�@;.B(I66�+3;6-;<H5�54*66�+.�9:7@;-.-�B;=4�T<;54.-�8*=.:;*65�7<�*66�5;-.5�.C975.-�=7�93+6;,�@;.B(�U76.�+*:<�=J9.5�7?�5=:3,=3:.5�54*66�<7=�+.�9.:8;==.-(V*:H;<*6�*,,.55�:7*-5�8*J�+.�:.F3;:.-�;<�*,,7:-�B;=4�5.,(�)''/(/(-(I<J�?*,;6;=J�9:7@;-;<H�-:;@.D=4:73H4�5.:@;,.�54*66�9:7@;-.�*�+J9*55�6*<-�W6*<.X�?7:�@.4;,6.5�<7=�3=;6;Y;<H�-:;@.D=4:73H4�?*,;6;=;.5(2.,(�'$>&(�D�I:.*�*<-�+36R�:.F3;:.8.<=5G2..�*:=;,6.�ZZP�[2,4.-36.�7?�E.H36*=;7<5[�6;8;=;<H�=4.�4.;H4=�*<-�+36R�7?�+3;6-;<H5P�=4.�8;<;838�5;Y.�7?�67=�+J�9.:8;==.-�6*<-�35.�*<-�9:7@;-;<H�8;<;838�J*:-�5.=+*,R:.F3;:.8.<=5(



Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

Resolution No. 2018-12 
 

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE DIVISION OF A 
PLATTED LOT 

 
 

 Resolution authorizing the division of platted lots in Country Club Park 
Subdivision 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of a Lots 116, 117, 118 and 119 of Country Club 
Park Subdivision has made a request to change lot boundaries as previously 
approved and recorded; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  Township ordinance no. 2000-243, Article IX, Section 11.01 
states that “Upon the filing of a petition, by the owner or owners of all interest 
therein, with the Township Board, the platted lots, outlot, or parcels of land in 
existing recorded plats may be partitioned or divided upon resolution of the 
Township Board into not more than four (4) parts, each of which shall, in regard 
to width, depth and area, conform to the terms and provisions of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti Zoning Ordinance, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Planning  and Development Coordinator has 
reviewed the division and confirmed that the resulting parcels meet the minimum 
requirements for lot size and road frontage as set forth by Section 2000 of the 
Township Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the revised property descriptions 
are approved as follows:  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: 
 
PARCEL 1: 
 
ALL OF LOTS 116 AND 117 AND THE WEST HALF OF LOT 118 
  
OTHERWISE DESCRIBED AS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NW CORNER OF LOT 115 OF “COUNTRY CLUB 
PARK SUB”, AS RECORDED IN LIBER 5 OF PLATS, PAGE 14 WASHTENAW 
COUNTY RECORDS, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WAHTENAW COUNTY, 
MICHIGAN, THENCE S 89’05’00’ E 70.07 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 115 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF HARDING AVE (50.00 FEET WIDE) 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
 
THENCE CONTINUING S 89’05’00 E 150.00 FEET; THENCE S 00-50-42’ W 
119.84 FEET; THENCE N 89’ 09’ 51’ W 149.84 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE W ½ OF LOT 118 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 116 & 117 
OF SAID “COUNTRY CLUB PARK SUBDIVISION”; THENCE N 00’46’15’ E 
120.05 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 116 TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. BEING A PART OF SECTION 7, T3S, R7E, YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN AND CONTAINING 0.41 
ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. BEING SUBJECT TO EASMENTS AND 
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY.  
 
 
PARCEL 2: 
 
THE EAST HALF OF LOT 118 AND ALL OF LOT 119  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 

OTHERSWISE DESCRIBED AS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NW CORNER OF LOT 115 OF “COUNTRY CLUB PARK 
SUB”, AS RECORDED IN LIBER 5 OF PLATS, PAGE 14, WASHTENAW 
COUNTY RECORDS, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, 
MICHIGAN, THENCE S 89’05’00’ E 220.07 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 115 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF HARDING AVE (50.00 FEET WIDE) 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
 
THENCE CONTINUING S 89’05’00’ E 90.00 FEET; THENCE S 00’50’42’ W 
119.71 FEET; THENCE N 89’09’51’ W 90.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF LOT 119 AND THE E ½ OF LOT 118 OF SAID “COUNTRY CLUB PARK SUB”;  
THENCE N 00’50’42 E 119.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. BEING A 
PART OF SECTION 7, T3S, R7E, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW 
COUNTY, MICHIGAN AND CONTAINING 0.25 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR 
LESS. BEING SUJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF 
ANY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 
 
Date:   April 6, 2018 
 
 
To:  Ypsilanti Township Board 
 
 
From:  Brian McCleery 
  Assistant Assessor 
 
Cc:  Charlotte Wilson 

Planning and Development Coordinator 
 
Re: Request to approve Resolution 2018-12 to Change Platted Lot Boundary Line in 

Country Club Park Subdivision lots 116, 117, 118 and 119, dividing the original 
parcel into 2 parcels. 

  
Parcel: 2433 Harding Ave: K-11-07-440-016, Lots 116, 117, 118 and 119 
 
New Parcels: 
 

 Parcel 1: Lots 116, 117 and the West half of lot 118 
 

Parcel 2: The East half of Lot 118 and lot 119   
   
 
The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval for the attached land division as the division would 
constitute a change in the original lot line in a recorded plat.  The proposed division would divide 
lot 118 in half with each new parcel receiving half of the lot. 
 
Ypsilanti Township’s local ordinance requires Township Board approval if there are any 
revisions to the original lot line in a recorded plat. This is required as the Board has already 
approved the original plat and the requested division is a revision to the previously approved 
boundaries 
 
The Planning and Development Coordinator has verified that the Lot division will not create any 
non-conforming conditions. 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER ROE 

MONICA WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

 

 Assessor’s Office 
 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 487-4927 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159 





 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
TO:  Charlotte Wilson 

Planning and Development Coordinator 
   
FROM: Brian McCleery 
  Assistant Assessor 
 
DATE:  March 27, 2018 
 
RE:  Land Division Application K-11-07-440-016  
 
 
A request for a land division for the above parcels has been submitted to our office for 
review. 
 
Please verify if this division complies with Zoning and Division Ordinances of the 
Township. 
 
Attached is the Property Division Application submitted to our office with a survey 
denoting the changes. 
 
As this division will constitute a change to the original lot lines, after your review, I will 
submit a request for approval of the division from the Ypsilanti Township Board.   
 
If you have any questions, or need more information, please do not hesitate contacting 
me. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Application 
Survey 
   

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER ROE 

MONICA WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

 

 Assessor’s Office 
 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 487-4927 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159 



7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

 

 
TO:   Brian McCleery, Assistant Assessor, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
FROM:  Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 
 
DATE:  April 6th, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Land Division – 2433 Harding Avenue 
 
 
Per your request, we have reviewed the request for the land division of the above 
parcel.  We verify the application complies with the Zoning and Division Ordinances of 
the Township. 
 
If you have any questions, or need more information, please do not hesitate contacting 
me. 
 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety | Planning & Zoning | Code Enforcement | Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize legal action to abate a public nuisance at 669 
Woburn/1490 Concord in the amount of $10,000 budgeted in 101-950.000-
801.023 

 

Date:  April 11, 2018 
 
The Office of Community Standards is seeking authorization to proceed with legal action in 
Washtenaw County Circuit Court to abate a public nuisance that exists at: 
 
Huron Heights/Huron Ridge Apartments – 669 Woburn/1490 Concord Drives 
 
The Office of Community Standards has been engaged with management of Huron Heights and 
Huron Ridge multifamily community for the past 13 months on several property maintenance 
violations that have not been resolved.  Although there has recently been progress toward 
compliance as a result of a district court filing, we are seeking authorization to file a circuit 
court petition in the event it becomes necessary to resolve these issues. 
 
This apartment community consists of two separate properties connected by an internal 
roadway system:  Huron Heights with 120 units and Huron Ridge with 142 units.  Each two-
story apartment has a separate street entrance.  There are two clubhouses, two pools, and 
seven playgrounds.  It is owned by American International Group (AIG) of New York, New York, 
and managed by Van Rooy Properties of Indianapolis, Indiana.  There are full time management 
and maintenance staff on site. 
 
In March, 2017 numerous buildings in the community and other properties in the area 
sustained roof damage as the result of a severe wind storm.  Protective tarps that were placed 
over damaged roofs remain in place today.  Despite numerous requests, the roofs have not 
been repaired while management reports an ongoing insurance settlement dispute.  
Management was recently cited to appear in 14-B District Court on April 25, 2018 to answer for 
the maintenance delay.  Shortly after serving the citation, a contractor applied for permits to 
repair all of the damaged roofs.  The permits have not been issued pending receipt of payment. 
 
Other unresolved issues include damaged patio fences, damaged chain link fencing along the 
property perimeter, and roads, walkways and playgrounds in disrepair.  Management was also 
cited to appear in district court for those issues. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

Both properties are currently in the multifamily rental inspection process that was scheduled 
earlier this year.  Building exteriors were inspected during the first week of March, and 
numerous violations were cited and are pending repair.  The interior of all 262 units are 
scheduled to be inspected during the first week of May.  We will have comprehensive data 
about the condition of all aspects of the community following those inspections.  





 
 2018 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP SECOND AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2018, 
by and between the Township Board of Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw 
County, parties of the first part and the Board of Washtenaw County 
Road Commissioners, parties of the second part. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties of the first part desire that certain improvements 
be made upon the local roads in the Township of Ypsilanti, and   
 
WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement 
under the provisions in Act 51 of Public Acts of 1951 as amended, 
 
IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the parties of the second part will 
accomplish the improvements as specified herein, all in accordance with 
the standards of the parties of the second part. 
 
It is further understood that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will be 
a named insured on the Washtenaw County Road Commission’s coverages for 
liability for the activities described above.  The Road Commission will 
submit a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverages to the 
Township Clerk prior to implementation of services under the contract. 
Each party to this contract shall be responsible for the acts and 
omissions of its employees and agents. 
 
1. Local Road Dust Control (497-11-108): 

Work to include placement of three (3) solid applications of 
contract brine on all certified local gravel/limestone roads 
within the township.  Estimated 68,880 gallons @ $0.1650 per 
gallon. 
Estimated cost of contract brine:      $   11,365.20 

 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
 
 
2018 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM 

Local Road Dust Control $  11,365.20 
Less 2018 Conventional Matching Funds:   5,682.60 

  
ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2018: $   5,682.60 
 
  



2018 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 
Page Two 
 
 
 
FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP: 
 
 
 
___________________________________     _______________________________  
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor      Witness 
 
 
 
___________________________________     _______________________________  
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk       Witness 
 
 
FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION: 
 
 
 
___________________________________     _______________________________ 
Douglas E. Fuller, Chair       Witness 
 
 
 
___________________________________     _______________________________ 
Roy D. Townsend, Managing Director     Witness 





 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 
 

 
To:   Ypsilanti Township Board 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Request approval to accept the lowest bid and designate Trendset 
Communications Group as the Township preferred Network Cable Installer valid 
until April 2020 and authorize forgoing the bid requirements for network cabling 
jobs valued under $7500. 

 

Date:   April 09, 2018 
 

 
On March 6th the Township Board authorized seeking sealed bids for a Preferred Network Cable 
Installer.  The Township receive seven proposals as listed below. 
 

Company 
 

Location 
 

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Total 

Access Interactive 
 

Novi 
 

$400 $265 $665 
Enertron 

 
Clinton 

 
$344 $318 $662 

Hisway Intermedia 
 

Ypsilanti 
 

$358 $398 $756 
Security Designs 

 
Livonia 

 
$251 $261 $512 

SoftChoice 
 

Chicago 
 

$780 $780 $1,560 
The Datacom Group 

 
Holt 

 
$510 $725 $1,235 

Trendset 
 

Clinton 
 

$234 $217 $451 
 
The RFP gave two common scenarios for network cabling jobs for vendors to bid on. 
 
The purpose of designating a Preferred Network Cable (PNC) installer is to have work for hire 
understanding between the Township and the PNC installer that individual cabling jobs under a 
specific dollar amount will first be offered to the PNC installer based on a previous bid process 
for a specific duration. 
 
In the past the Township has found it sometimes difficult to get pricing quotes for cabling jobs.  
These difficulties often lead to delays in other projects. 
 
Having a PNC installer will allow the Township to forgo some of the bid requirements for 
network cable installations. 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

This understanding has no minimal or maximum dollars amounts.  The RFP also stated this is a 
non-exclusive agreement.  Should the Township find it best to proceed with the standard bid 
processed it shall have the ability to do so. 
 
I respectfully request approval to accept the lowest bid and designate Trendset 
Communications Group as the Township preferred Network Cable Installer valid until April 2020 
and authorize forgoing the bid requirements for network cabling jobs valued under $7500. 
 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Trustees 
 
From:  Fire Chief Eric Copeland 
 
Date:  April 11, 2018 
 
Subject: Authorization to seek sealed bids for replacement of the roof at 20 S. Hewitt Road 
  (Station #3) budgeted in line item: #206-970-000-971-008 for CAPITAL OUTLAY –  
  PROPERTY IMPROVEMENT – FY 2018. 
 
 
In service to the Township, I am requesting for the April 17, 2018 Township Board regular meeting to 
present the following item(s) for consideration. 
 
 

1) Authorization to seek sealed bids for roof replacement at our fire station located at 20 
S. Hewitt Road. Funding for the Hewitt roof replacement project approved in the FY 
2018 Fire Fund Budget additionally outlined in the 2017 Capital Improvement Plan for 
Station #3. 
 
Attached is the bid packet containing the YT Contract Provision Checklist, Hewitt roof 
project specifications, 2015 edition of Michigan Building Code and YT requirements 
pertinent to this CIP project. 

 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Fire Chief Eric Copeland 

Office (734) 
544-4225 
Fire Chief 
(734) 544-
4110 
Fire Marshal 
(734) 544-
4107 
Fax (734) 
544-4195 
 
 

           FIRE 
DEPARTME

NT 
                   222 
SOUTH FORD 
BOULEVARD 

                 
YPSILANTI, 

MICHIGAN  48198 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 Fire Station #3 roof removal and replacement 
CHECKLIST & SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti requirements for this project are as follows: 
  
 
ADHERENCE TO CONTRACT PROVISION CHECKLIST: 

 
 
 Prevailing Wage Provision (If Applicable). 
 Bonds: (If project/bid is over $25,000.00) 
 Performance Bond: (If required usually equal to amount of the bid) 
 Maintenance & Guarantee Bond: (If required)  
 Bid Bond or Surety Bond: (If required usually 5% of bid) 
 Insurance Certificates: Workers Compensation - $500,000 limit each accident. General 

Liability – (combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 each occurrence for bodily injury & 
property damage) must include 60 day written notice for change of coverage cancellation or 
non-renewable coverage 

 Protective Policy: (combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 each occurrence for bodily injury 
& property damage) Must Name “The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and it’s past, 
present, and future elected Officials, Appointed Commissions and Boards, Agents and 
Employees shall be named as “Additional named Insured” (unless otherwise approved by 
the Township Attorney) on the General Liability Policy with respect to the services 
provided under this Contract”. 

 Automobile Liability: covers owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with personal protection 
insurance and property protection. Includes residual liability insurance with a combined single 
limit of $1,000,000.00 each accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

 Builder’s Risk: (Required if over $25,000.00) 
 Umbrella Policy/Excess Coverage: (Optional) 
 Correct Coverage Amounts – Township Named as “Additional Named Insured” 

 
 

1) Pre-bid meeting TBD. (Optional) 
2) 2 to 3 copies of bid 

 
 
 

 
Office (734) 544-4225 
Fire Chief (734) 544-4110 
Fire Marshal (734) 544-4107 
Fax (734) 544-4195 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
222 SOUTH FORD BOULEVARD 

YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN  48198-6067 



The Charter Township of Ypsilanti general requirements for this project are as follows: 
 

 PERMITS: The Contractor shall furnish and pay for all permits and inspections required for 
his work. 

 CODES: All work performed shall comply with all applicable codes and ordinances including 
all Building Codes, Mechanical Codes, Plumbing Codes, Electrical Codes and Fire Codes. If 
required by the local codes the building systems affected by this work shall be compliant to 
current code unless grandfathered under the code. 

 DIMENSIONS/SIZING: All contractors are responsible for determining the appropriate 
dimensions and/or sizing of all material components. It is required that the contractor have a 
licensed professional engineer verify the roof dimensions and special features. 

 CONTRACTOR to provide a detailed listing of materials and verify specifications of the 
roofing shingles (20yr). 
 
 

PRICING SHALL INCLUDE: 
 

 Performance and Payment Bond costs 
 Prevailing Wage Labor Standards 
 Costs of all Permits and required inspections 
 Costs of all Engineering and Architectural drawings and seals if required 
 All applicable taxes. Include all special taxes subject to assessed locally on contract work such 

as a “Business Tax” or “Contractor tax” for the privilege of doing business in the City, County 
or other Government jurisdiction. 
 

 
PROPOSAL DELIVERY: 
 
 

 Fax or e-mail proposal to:    Ypsilanti Township Clerk’s Office, at 734-484-5156 
     lstanfield@ytown.org  
 

 Follow fax or e-mail with a hard copy of the proposal mailed to : 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Clerk’s Office 
Attention: Lisa Stanfield 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 

 Please direct any questions to Fire Chief Eric Copeland (734) 368-6769, email at 
ecopeland@ytown.org or Captain Keith Harr (734) 368-5342 or email at kharr@ytown.org    
 

 
 

Bids are due by mail, fax or e-mail on or before 12:00 PM on the Due Date TBD. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org
mailto:ecopeland@ytown.org
mailto:kharr@ytown.org


 
 
  
 
The Michigan Building Code requirements and specifications for this project are as follows: 
 

1) Tear off existing shingles. 
2) Any damaged sheeting or 1x6 facia found after tear off would be an additional charge. 
3) Protect gutters, downspouts, siding and shrubbery. 
4) Properly dispose of all waste. 
5) All workmanship to be performed according to the Michigan Building Code 2015 requirements. 
6) Furnish and install proper ventilation per the Michigan Building Code 2015 requirements. 
7) Furnish and install a synthetic underlayment on all roof surfaces with the exception of locations 

that receive ice and water shield. 
8) Furnish and install ice and water shield minimum 4 feet above soffit and/or unheated surfaces. 
9) Furnish and install new drip edge and sidewall flashing. 
10) Furnish and install new boots around all plumbing stacks. 
11) Furnish and install a roof system using an architectural (20 yr. minimum) shingle. 
12) Clean around building and leave area as found or better.  

 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti requirements for this project are as follows: 
  

1) Liability insurance acknowledgement including the Township in amount of $1,000,000. 
2) Performance bond for contract amount. 
3) Bid bond of 5% 
4) Pre-bid meeting TBD. 
5) 2 to 3 copies of bid submitted by 12:00 PM on Due Date. 
6) Unit plywood/underlayment replacement escrow tabulated in 500 square footage increments. 
7) Prevailing wage requirements apply to this project. 

 
 

For any questions about the specifications, please contact Fire Chief Eric Copeland (734) 368-6769, email 
at ecopeland@ytown.org or Captain Keith Harr (734) 546-7313 or email at kharr@ytown.org  
 
 
 
 
 
  

mailto:ecopeland@ytown.org
mailto:kharr@ytown.org








 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	April 17, 2018
	Proclamation Honoring Chemical Awareness Week
	Proclamation in Honor of Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness
	Departmental Reports
	14B District Court - March 2018
	Fire Dept. Report - March 2018
	Hydro Report - February 2018
	Police Services - March 2018

	Work Session Agenda
	SEMCOG Presentation
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Work Session Minutes - April 3, 2018
	Regular Meeting Minutes - April 3, 2018
	Statements and Checks April 17, 2018
	Treasurer's Report - March 2018

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	Request to Enter Negotiations to Sell 138 S. Harris

	New Business
	Budget Amendment #8
	Request to Approve Mutual Aid Agreement with Van Buren Twp. Fire Dept.
	1st Reading Res. 2018-07, Proposed Ord. 2018-477, Business Registration
	Resolution 2018-10, Professional Service Fees
	1st Reading Res. 2018-11, Proposed Ord. 2018-478, Rezone 1250 E. Michigan
	Resolution 2018-12, Auth. Division of Platted Lot Country Club Subdivision
	Public Nuisance Abatement
	Auth. to Commit Funds with City of Ypsilanti for Emerick St. Work
	Request Auth. of Agreement with WCRC For Local Road Dust Control
	Request to Cancel May 1, 2018 Board Meeting

	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to Award Low Bid for Preferred Network Cable Provider
	Request to Seek Bids for Roof Replacement at Fire Station #3
	Request to Purchase ProGator 2020A

	Other Business



